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CHAIR MOLINA: . .(gavel). . The Committee of the Whole meeting for Thursday,
December 3 rd , 2009 is now in session. It's three minutes after the hour of nine o'clock.
For the record, we have in attendance, Committee Chair Molina, Committee Members
Mateo, Baisa, Johns [sic], excuse me, Kaho`ohalahala, Nishiki, and Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Excused are Members Johnson, Medeiros, and Pontanilla. Good morning,
Members. We have three items on our agenda today. But before we do that Chair would
like to recognize Staff in attendance here as well. We have our Committee Analyst,
Kirstin Hamman, as well as Committee Secretary, Camille Sakamoto. And from the
Administration, the Corporation Counsel's office, we have Traci Fujita Villarosa. And
from the Finance Department, we have the Finance Director, Mr. Kalbert Young. We
have one individual signed up for testimony this morning. Before I call up the individual
for testimony Chair would like to go over a few ground rules. You will have three
minutes to testify with one minute to conclude. And please state your full name and any
organization that you may be representing. And please, everyone out in the gallery as
well as my, you my fellow colleagues, please turn off all cell phones and pagers so as not
to disrupt our proceedings this morning. So with that being said, Chair would like to call
up Sandy Baz, and Mr. Baz will be testifying on Committee of the Whole, Item 30.
Good morning, Mr. Baz.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. BAZ: Good morning. Aloha, Chairman Molina and Committee Members. My name is
Sandy Baz, and I'm the CEO for Maui Economic Opportunity. And, I, I appreciate the
opportunity to testify in front of you this morning regarding this item and a resolution for,
relating to the Council Members sitting on nonprofit boards and their voting. I have
reviewed the memos from Ms. Heely regarding a reply to Councilmember Mateo's
request as well as a separate memo.
And I wanted to first of all start off with a little bit about MEO. In 1964, President
Lyndon Johnson signed an Economic Opportunity Act, and this created an organization,
community action programs. And these community action programs were developed
throughout the nation; over 1,100 of us that are directly integrated with the local
community so that we can fight poverty, we can eliminate poverty, and we can help to
create self sufficiency in low-income communities. The integration of the local
governments was critical at that time. And a few years later, the Green and Quie
Amendments were changed to the Economic Opportunity Act that created a tripartite
board which is a three-part board. They requires actually local elected officials to be on
the board.
I'm gonna read excerpts from an information memorandum which I have distributed.
This, it's from the United States Department of Health and Human Services
Administration for Children and Families, Office of Community Services. And it's dated
March 23' d , 2005. So Section 676B of the Community Services Block Grant
Reauthorization Act of 1998 requires that as a condition of designation, private nonprofit
entities and public organizations administer their CSBG program through tripartite boards
that fully participate in the development, planning, implementation, and evaluation of the
program to serve low-income communities.
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Those three sections of the board include low-income individuals and families, and these
are a minimum of one-third of the tripartite board membership, must be democratically
selected representatives of low-income individuals and families who reside in the
geographic area being served by the agency. One-third must be elected officials holding
office at their time of selection or their representatives. If a sufficient number of elected
officials or their representatives are not able to serve, appointed public officials or their
representatives may take the place of elected officials. And in the third section of this
tripartite board is major groups and interests in the community served. These are...the
remaining board members must be chosen from business, industry, labor, religious, law
enforcement, education, and other major groups and interests in the community served.
And I have to admit when I first started at MEO, and I saw this tripartite board system, I
did not understand it. And I, I kinda questioned the, the structure of this and why this
would work. But over the last, almost 10 years now I've been working for MEO, I have
really come to understand that this is the best situation for a nonprofit -MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MR. BAZ: --board to be made up of. Elected public officials or the...Mr. Chair, can I come
back at the end and do another three minutes?
CHAIR MOLINA: Urn.
MR. BAZ: Or you wanna just...
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, Mr. Baz, I guess since you're the only member this morning.
Members, any objections to...Mr. Baz, I'll give you a little leeway this morning if you
want. You need two more minutes or...
MR. BAZ: Yeah, it won't be that long.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any objections to that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Later on in, well, basically this tripartite board is, is really important to the operation
of a nonprofit and as I do board training now, I do it both, you know, here on Maui. I do
it across the State and I also do it at national conferences, board training governance
issues. Elected public officials or their representatives sitting on nonprofit boards is very
critical and this information memorandum that came from the Federal government
understands that and, and takes it like this. It says that overarching purposes of having
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elected officials serve on tripartite boards are to encourage awareness of poverty needs
within the community and action by local governments, and to foster close coordination
and partnership between public agencies and the eligible entities. State CSBG lead
agencies, state community action associations, and local agency officials should ensure
that the nature and number of public officials serving on each agency board supports and
promotes these goals. The statute requires that elected public officials must be holding
office on the date of selection to a tripartite board. The statute allows public officials
(elected, or if necessary, appointed) to name someone to represent them on the board.
Again, while the statute does not set term limits for this category of membership, the
spirit of the law, the, that local governments participate in agency oversight and
governance, suggest that elected officials serve on boards in this capacity only while they
are in office.
MS. HAMMAN: Five minutes.
MR. BAZ: Similarly, individuals designated are designed by elected and appointment officials
to represent them on boards serve only while their principals are in office or are
redesignated by those in office. Agencies are responsible for making sure that this
category of membership remains current through such procedures as prompt notification
of newly elected or currently elected public officials of the opportunity for board service
or representation, and timely replacement of board members (or their representatives)
who no longer hold public office. So, Mr. Chair, I could go on and, and explain there's
comments to the, the resolution and the items in here that I'd like to make if, if I could.
CHAIR MOLINA: Well, Mr. Baz, at this point you, how much time do you...
MR. BAZ: Uh, well, just two items. One, in the resolution just to note it...
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Mr. Baz, I'm sorry, I've been told you've already been given six
minutes at this point.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: So, however, if you'd like to leave the information with us to further discuss
we'll have Staff assist you in providing that information.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I got a question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I have a question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Alright. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. So, Mr. Baz, I'm gonna have to
stop your testimony -MR. BAZ: Yep.
CHAIR MOLINA: --at this point. The Members would, do have a question -MR. BAZ: Sure.
CHAIR MOLINA: --for you on your testimony. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Sandy, that, that is all fine, okay.
MR. BAZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: That is all fine. You know, and, and, and we can read that and
take it into consideration. We still have a Charter. Did you read the opinion? You
mentioned that you -MR. BAZ: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --read the opinion.
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So what do you think about -MR. BAZ: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --what the Charter has said about the prohibitions? That's
what is the uppermost document that we've gotta follow as public officials.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and so there's prohibitions in there. And, and the
opinion was rendered by the Corporation Counsel. It's, it would seem to me that if you
want to legitimatize it, then we've gotta change the Charter.
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MR. BAZ: Urn.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI And, and so did you seek some opinion, legal opinion
personally, yourself?
MR. BAZ: Yes, I did.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and, and, give us -MR. BAZ: Well, it...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --what, what your -MR. BAZ: The...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --legal opinion is.
MR. BAZ: The national legal opinion was based on the Federal legislation. The...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you're not, you're not responding to what the Charter says?
MR. BAZ: Can I make a note on the, the, to answer your question, on the memo dated
November 3' 6 , 2009, from Adrianne Heely, to the Council Chair, Danny Mateo. There
are items in here that while it discusses...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Page number?
MR. BAZ: Urn.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that the...
MR. BAZ: This is the, is there page numbers on here?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes, on the left.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
MR. BAZ: Oh, on the very top. Okay. Page number five says there is no Board of Ethics
opinion or rules address the kind of immunity issues raised in your hypothetical scenario;
and therefore, we recommend that if advice on this subject is desired, a request for an
advisory opinion be submitted to the Board. So this is, so the Board of Ethics is the one
that's ruling on, and, and Adrianne, Ms. Heely's comments are based on the Board of
Ethics ruling from a prior ruling which I think was in 1999. And it, it says here that they
don't, if there is an ethical issue, then it's, it's subject to the Council Members abstaining
from voting on those issues.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Mr. Baz, hang on. Mr. Nishiki, you have another question for
Mr. Baz'?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. I, I, I, I, I, I think that...I think it's pretty dear, Sandy,
what it is saying. And, and so if you're questioning the Board of Ethics then, then maybe
you're saying that Council Members should go and present their case to the Board of
Ethics before voting on anything then.
MR. BAZ: That's possible. The resolution basically criminalizes being a board member of a
nonprofit organization. By allowing the board, the Council Members to abstain, to
request for abstain from voting on things that they have financial interest on, but then
shall be permitted to vote on issues as long as the majority of Council Members agree to
that. But if they sit on a nonprofit board, they can never vote on a nonprofit issue.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Nishiki, any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKE No, I'm, I'm, I'm done. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Committee Members, questions for Mr. Baz? Member
Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Baz. This is not a new issue as you know.
This has been going on forever. From when MEO was created we have had this situation
of the Council Members and other elected officials sitting on the MEC Board. And in
previous times there were five seats assigned to the Maui County Council. And all five
were filled by Council Members. And as time went by, the question became about the
Sunshine Law.
,

MR. BAZ: Corect.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And it was pointed out that only two Council Members would be
allowed to sit personally to avoid problems with Sunshine Law. But the other three
Members could select or the Council could select persons to represent them. And
therefore we would have the required representation that CSBG, the Federal Community
Service Block Administration Law calls for -MR. BAZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --to meet that requirement. And it has never really been an issue
until recently when there's been questions about it. And I personally, having been in
your shoes, had consulted nationally, and I remember John Buckstead who was then the
Director of the National Community Action Association corresponding with the Council
to put that to bed. And so I'm kind of surprised that it's, it's an issue again.
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And my question is this issue of direct financial interest. You know, when you sit on a
nonprofit board, even if it's not MEO, I don't care what nonprofit board, you get no
financial interest out of it. Let me tell you it's a financial loss. I know because I sit on a
board and I am frequently called upon to make donations or to give a lot because that's
what board members do. So 1, I would like clarification of this issue of financial interest.
What does that mean?
CHAIR MOLINA: Well, when we get into the discussion phase we'll.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, I will, I will ask that question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any questions for Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wait.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I wasn't pau. I'm...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry. You know what, she's not done. I'm sorry you
not done?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I'm not.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, you have a question for Mr. Baz'? Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One more question, and this question is this. If Maui Economic
Opportunity cannot meet the requirements of the Community Service Block Grant, which
is your founding legislation, the entire MEO is funded, founded upon this designation by
the State of Hawaii as a Community Action Agency under this Federal legislation
umbrella, if we cannot, if you cannot meet that requirement, are you then no longer a
Community Action Agency and not eligible for your base core money'?
MR. BAZ: That's correct. It talked about, in, in the Information Memorandum, eligible entities.
Those eligible entities require that tripartite board. And they require us to meet a lot of
different requirements. And one of them is the, that we have that system of, of board
membership. If we cannot meet that system, then we will lose our CSBG eligible entity
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which means a little over S400,000 a year in Federal money that comes in directly from
the CSBG plus an additional, maybe probably SI million that we get just for being
associated with that. And it would jeopardize our Head Start Program as well because
that is a CSBG related program.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And Head Start is about how much money?
MR. BAZ: About 2.1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And the difference, I think that you're trying to tell us is that
unlike the normal nonprofit, which is started by a group of people who have a belief in a
cause and a mission, and so they get together and they get designation from IRS, become
a 501(c)(3), and how they select their board members is their business. But in the case of
a Community Action Agency like MEO and there's now, I don't know how many
throughout the Country. But there are several in...like in Hawaii there's four. I don't
know how many in the other states, but a whole bunch of hem. This, this CSBG tripartite
board requirement exists.
MR. BAZ: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And that's the difference. MEO does not have a choice about
who they get on their board. It's pretty much mandated how the board has to be
constituted.
MR. BAZ: Right. And, and it also talks about the benefit to the local government of sitting on
the Community Action Agency Board and you could also say other nonprofit boards.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And what is that benefit?
MR. BAZ: It helps you to do your job. You, as Council Members, are supposed to be
representing the communities that you serve. And when you sit on at nonprofit board, you
get knowledge of community issues. You get knowledge of community items that you
can then help to make decisions, not just on behalf of the nonprofit agency, but on behalf
of the community in your role, as, as an elected official representing this community.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I have one last question, then I'll be quiet. What is the situation
at the MEO Board right now in terms of your elected sector'?
MR. BAZ: We have two vacancies. We currently have a vacancy in the County Council seats,
and we have a vacancy at the Mayor's office. We have, we have had one vacancy on the
Council which we appointed to the Office of Hawaiian Affairs, which Judge Mossman
sits on. We have the State Senator, Shan Tsutsui has a seat on our Board. He has a
appointed representative. And State representative Joseph Souki has a seat on our Board
that he has appointed a representative.
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COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much for the clarification. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, you know, thank you, Sandy, for being
here. I think you've answered some of the questions I was gonna ask along that lines of
the MEO, but, you know, you also have stated that you've trained, or as a trainer of
nonprofits,
MR. BAZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and you've seen the makeup of many of these boards.
MR. BAZ: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and again, the question about financial gains is
always the issue whenever we do anything, right, as public officials. But like you said,
many of us get a real good pulse of our community because we're there and a part of that
board to understand the dilemmas not only of the board itself and the organization or the
group they serve but the groups that may be connected or tied in with that particular
nonpro fit.
MR. BAZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So my question is, you know, cause I serve, and
I've served on many boards in the past and I continue to serve today. How would you
deem, and if you're looking from the public's point of view...I not talking Corp. Counsel
and, and, and, and even the Charter because the Charter is clear. Financial -MR. BAZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --gain. I, I've yet, you know, like Ms. Baisa said, to gain a
dollar out of this and lost much more, but for good reasons. Flow do you think this rule
beyond MEO would affect other nonprofits for which some of us serve on right now?
MR. BAZ: Well, I think that for one thing let me say that Maui's a very small community. The
availability of people to sit on nonprofit boards is very small. People that are willing to
commit, you know, a part of their volunteer time, commit dollars, commit fiduciary
responsibility and actual, you know, liability to a nonprofit as a board member. You're
owners of the corporation so you're liable for activities that are going on in that
corporation. And you then, so to get people to sit on nonprofit boards is a difficult
situation. So to reduce the pool by nine community leaders that are, are very significant
to this community would make it very difficult. It would make it even harder for
nonprofits to be operating in, in the best manner possible. When we look at board
structure we try to look at the, the quality of people that are on the board, the variety of
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people on the board, the diversity so that we can get a better picture and, and make better
decisions as a board of a nonprofit organization.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And let me...somebody's phone. Let me say, let me ask
you this question. Do you believe we would not be having this discussion today if not for
the foresight, generosity, and the ability of our forefathers and through this Council, to
take care and fund many of our nonprofits who have core essential services that have
helped keep Maui no ka oi?
MR. BAZ: I, I, I don't know that answer. I think that as a board member of nonprofit that I can
tell you that in the, sometimes in the past I've actually gotten more support from Council
Members who were not board members than from Council Members who were board
members. Because they do feel like, you know, they, they don't, even though it's their
responsibility as a board member to assist the organization, their role as a Council
Member is more important. So they're not gonna be advocating necessarily specifically
for a certain issue. But, but other Council Members support nonprofits.
Ilyou look around the room and you can, you guys all have different nonprofits, different
issues that you have, supporting whether it's a nonprofit issue, or a government issue, or
a personal issue. You guys all have different issues that you support. And so whether
you sit on a board of a nonprofit or not, you're gonna be supporting those kind of issues.
In, in the resolution here, it talks about...8C talks about disclosure and services a board
member of a corporation, abstaining from voting. And it basically between 8C, and 8D
it's telling you that if you're subject to 8C, which you sit on a nonprofit corporation
board you can never vote on an issue on that. But in 8D it says that if you're...have
financial interest in any matter which is affected by the action of the Council, or any
Member right or title to a seat on the Council, or any Member [sic] involving official
conduct or any Member [sic] which the Member believes the Member voting would be in
violation with Code of Ethics. They can actually...you guys can vote that they can still
vote on the issue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so...
MR. BAZ: If you read 8D, -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: --you guys can still vote on an issue where you have financial interest in. But you
can never vote on an issue where you have a nonprofit, where you sit on a nonprofit
board. I, I think the resolution is flawed in that area.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Victorino, you have -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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CHAIR MOLINA: --additional questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, the question I think I'm gonna have to bring
up will have to go directly to Corp. Counsel, because they would have to come, you
know, because I guess the question I have and, and this would be just your opinion. And
I'll, I'll leave it so that the public and I know this question means your opinion. Do you
believe, all of, any of us serving on any nonprofit board gets any kind of, or could get any
financial gain out of that?
MR. BAZ: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And that's fine. And so his opinion, Chair. And
I'll direct my question to Corp. Counsel and to our legal minds a little bit later but thank
you very much.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Victorino, the IRS will not allow that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I know that. And, and we all know that. And, and I
believe, you know, none of us have ever, ever--and I say that for me, I cannot speak for
others--I know I have never gotten any financial gain by helping this community. But I
sit right here today and I can look anybody in the eye and say I'm thankful for the
opportunity to serve and I will continue to serve until I'm told I absolutely cannot. And
by gang [sic], you better have a good reason or you and me are gonna be sitting in court
discussing this matter. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. Thank you, Mr. Victorino, for your passionate comments.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ...(chuckles)...
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for Mr. Baz? Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Baz, thank you for your
testimony. And thank you. We've had this discussion before.
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Many times.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: You, you know, and, you know, right, right, right now MEO, how
many elected officials are you required to have on your board right now?
MR. BAZ: Eight.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE NIINUTES
Council or the County of \hill
December 3, 2009

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: You're required to have eight. You know part of our discussion prior
was that out of that eight, five was recognized as Maui County Council.
MR. BAZ: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Correct. Five Members from this Council is also called the majority.
That's why you and I had that discussion early on. And that was why you and I had the
discussion in saying whether or not you would consider out of the eight, omitting the five
majority Council Members, and expanding that to the State House of Representatives,
State Senate, Department of Education, the Office of Hawaiian Affairs, any other elected
officials so that no dominant majority would be represented by the eight that you are
required to have. And I believe you've kinda addressed that with the expansion to OHA.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I have reduced the Council Member seats to four. My board has reduced the
Council Members' seats to four, and appointed OHA a seat -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: --with an elected official.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, I just didn't want the implication that this resolution that is really
being sent for the sake of discussion -MR. BAZ: Llh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --because since 1998 till now this body, this elected body had not had
the opportunity to discuss the, the matter at all. I don't want the implication that the
adoption of a resolution like this will provide the loss of funding to MEO whether it be
Head Start or any other program because that is not true. Because your organization,
Mr. Baz, does it not have the opportunity of filling the eight required elected official seats
with other elected officials other than the majority of this Council'?
MR. BAZ: We do have the option to get any kind of elected officials that we can.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Baz. Mr. Chairman, I look forward to the
continued discussion of this because we need to clear and make it real, I, 1 guess
understandable, you know, what the intent of today's discussion is all about. And it is
not to punish. And it is not to limit. And it is not to take away nobody's funding from
any nonprofit. I do not serve as a hoard member on any nonprofit organization and I sure
as hell support the nonprofits, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And good morning, Mr. Baz.
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MR. BAZ: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. When, when, speaking specifically of MEO,
the board members, arc they appointed? Or are they elected by community-based
election?
MR. BAZ: As I read in the, in the, what's in the Information Memorandum, they are, the
low-income individuals are elected by the, the communities that they represent, whether
it be the Head Start Policy Council, or whether it be seniors from the West Side, or
whether it be a low-income community from Molokai. Those individuals are elected
from the groups that they represent.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. What, what about the elected officials, the Council
Members?
MR. BAZ: The elected officials are, our board structure and the way that it's always been is that
those seats are appointed by the board to a certain group of people. A group, you know,
Council Members, or a State Senator, or State Representative. Used to have Senate...
United States Senator Akaka used to sit on our board. Those are elected by the, excuse
me, those are designated by the board and then the Council in its actions in the past, even
recently have at the Committee of the Whole, appointed those positions as an action item
of the Committee of the Whole.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see, okay. For the MEO board, are your board meetings
open to public attendance and participation'?
MR. BAZ: They are open to public attendance and the Chair can call upon any guest to, to
speak. They're not Sunshine Law, you know, -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. BAZ: --kind of meetings, but yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because, you made a point about having the elected
officials on the Board of Directors gives them an opportunity to listen to the issues and
the community and so forth.
MR. BAZ: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But in your description of the board now, they can, we can
attend just as somebody from the public and still hear the issues and participate. Is that
correct?
MR. BAZ: You wouldn't be able to participate necessarily because you're not a board member.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. You just said that...
MR. BAZ: You could listen to discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. And, and that would give you -MR. BAZ: But...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --the sense of understanding what's going on right? As, as
a person that can...
MR. BAZ: Have any of you attended a MEO board meeting?
COUNCILM EMBER MEDEIROS: I, I...
MR. BAZ: Other than -COUNCILM EMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I, I don't go -MR. BAZ: --the board members.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --just because, for me I don't serve on any boards. Because
I don't think for me it, it's good for me to serve on a board and be on this Council.
And that's why I don't serve, even though I've been asked to serve. But that, that's a
personal decision on my part as a Council Member. But yeah, I just wanted to know if
anybody from the public could attend because there are some board, boards that you can't
attend. And that's why, 1, I just wanted to know how MEO structures their board.
MR. BAZ: Our board meetings are generally the fourth Thursday of every other month.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it's opened to the public for attendance?
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, I appreciate the answers and the clarification.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. But we're not subject to the Sunshine Law so there's no public testimony
portion or anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. BAZ: It'd be subject to the Chair of the board.
COUNCILM EMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh, okay. Thank you, Mr. Baz. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any other questions for Mr. Baz?
Member Balsa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just wanna follow up on this public meeting thing. Although the
meetings are public, as for as Council Members go, and my understanding is we have
two, do we have two ME0 board, I mean Council Members on the MEO board right
now?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, therefore, it would not be okay for other Members to go
because of Sunshine Law.
MR. BAZ: I, I don't know the Sunshine...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I've been told that if two, that's it, three, don't go, and I may be
wrong and this will be an issue we'll talk later with Corp Counsel. But I have been
advised that I should not to go a meeting when two people are there, two Council
Members are there because now then we now have three. This why the thing was
changed to only allow ...(Change Tape, Start 113). . two board members, two actual
Council Members to serve, and three representatives, and now it'll be two if it goes to the
four which you're talking about. Has the bylaws been changed to four?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you only have two more to find then. And you have those,
you don't have those filled'?
MR. BAZ: I have one vacancy currently.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, we'll talk about this later on with Corp. Counsel.
And thank you very much for your clarification. You're inheriting a very old problem
that we've been talking about. And I wanna thank Chair Mateo for putting this matter on
the Council Agenda. It's time that it was hashed out and settled. Thank you very much,
Member M ateo. ... (Chuck/es)...
CI lAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Balsa. Committee Members, any other questions for
Mr. Baz? Seeing none, thank you very much for responding to the questions from the
Committee, Mr. Baz. Committee Secretary, do we have any one else signed up for public
testimony for any of our agenda items today'?
MS. SAKAMOTO: No, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing none, Members, with no objections, the Chair will close
public testimony on all three agenda items.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So ordered by the Committee.

...END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
ITEM NO. 1(22):

LITIGATION MATTERS (SPECIAL COUNSEL AUTHORIZATION:
MATTERS RELATING TO AUCTION RATE SECURITIES) (C.C. No. 09 - 14)

CHAIR MOLINA: Alright, Members, let's get right down to business, going to our first item
which is Committee of the Whole Item 1(22), Special Counsel Authorization matters
relating to auction rate securities. The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated
November 9` h , 2009, from the Corporation Counsel's office, transmitting a proposed
resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING THE EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL
GOODSILL ANDERSON QUINN AND STIFEL A LIMITED LIABILITY LAW
PARTERSHIP LLP, IN THE MATTERS RELATING TO AUCTION RATE
SECURITIES". The purpose of the proposed resolution is to authorize the employment
of Goodsill Anderson Quinn and Sti fel, A Limited Liability Law Partnership LLP, as
special counsel to advise and represent the County of Maui in matters relating to auction
rate securities, for a total compensation of 835,000. And now to give us an overview of
this consideration, we have Deputy Corporation Counsel Traci Fujita Villarosa, as well as
Finance Director Kalbert Young to brief the Committee. I guess we'll go, Ms. Villarosa,
you can go first.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Good morning, Mr. Chair. This matter is a little unusual for an
outside counsel request. 1 don't believe the County has ever had a securities litigation
matter before it. I believe maybe last year the Council was briefed by the Finance
Director on auction rate securities. Just as a, as a brief overview, auction rate securities
are a type of investment that's part of the County's Short Term Investment Portfolio.
And in the past these securities have been liquid. Liquid, like a cash type investment
because they were sold and bought on the market freely, like every 28 days or so. But in
early 2008, the market for those securities failed. And this is just a nationwide
occurrence. And so these securities since 2008 have not been able to be bought and sold
on the market as they had in the past. We have been trying since then to get the
investment banks that sold us these securities to buy them back because under State law
our short-term investments must be limited to terms of less than five years. They must
not mature more than five years since the date that we purchased the investments.
We've not been successful in getting all of the securities bought back. We currently have
about S32 million in securities that were sold to us by what is now known as Bank of
America Merrill Lynch. And we've exhausted, like I said, we've contacted them, we've
made demand letters to them, we've even filed a complaint with the State of Hawaii

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES
Council (attic County of Maui
December 3, 2009

DCCA Office alleging that, that they've violated the terms of the, of our, of our
agreement. And at this point we are looking at seeking assistance from outside counsel.
This is a, a special, a specialized area of law. There's actually only a few attorneys in the
State of Hawaii who practice this type of law. When we went through our procurement
process, there were two firms on our outside counsel list that had this type of expertise.
One of the firms was conflicted out because they represent Bank of America Merrill
Lynch. So we were left with the one firm, the one that's before you in the resolution,
Goodsill Anderson, as our possible outside counsel. We've had some discussions with
them but they haven't taken a look really at any of our documents. So initially this
money would be used to evaluate our case. They would look at our documents. I would
personally be working closely with the attorneys and I've already told them that I would
try to do as much of the work as I could in-house as far as gathering documents or getting
information or statements from our staff that they might need. And then we've also
included the possibility of tiling a complaint in court against Bank of America Merrill
Lynch. So the rest of that money, we're hoping if, if well, if we needed to get to that
point we're hoping that it would cover up to filing that complaint in court.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Fujita Villarosa. Director Young, do you have any
additional comments to make before I turn matters over to the Committee for questions'?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Chair. Only to remind the Members about certain points that I've
made to the Council and the Budget and Finance Committee since this issue broke back
in February of 2008. This is a matter that is not isolated or unique to the County of Maui,
not in the State of Hawaii, and certainly not within the United States. Auction rate
securities are a very common and popular investment item that all governmental entities
use to invest their short-term monies. The most notable cases that everyone is probably
aware of is class action lawsuits filed by the New York State Attorney General, Andrew
Cuomo, against all brokerages dealing in auction rate securities which included Merrill
Lynch.
The County of Maui had previously held, at the time of February 2008, approximately
$44 million in auction rate securities at that time of the auction foreclose...failures. The
only two firms that we had dealing with auction rate securities were UBS and Merrill
Lynch. UBS had $4 million of auction rate securities and Merrill Lynch had about $40
million of the County's auction rate securities.
The actions of the New York State Attorney General, against UBS resulted in a class
action settlement from UBS that resulted in UBS purchasing back the County of Maui's
auction rate securities at full par value. So we, we resolved our claim with UBS through
the actions of the New York State Attorney General. Subsequently, the New York State
Attorney General took action against Merrill Lynch, and another class action settlement
was resolved in that suit. However, Merrill Lynch has claimed that the settlement does
not include the class that the County of Maui resides in, that being "institutional
investors".
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So over the course of the last, up to two years, we have been working with Merrill Lynch,
trying to resolve this issue. It is a, it is a fault of the market that we, that the auctions
have failed. But nonetheless, we contend that these securities historically, and this is
going back at least 10 to 15 years, have always been marketed and have been treated as
liquid items because auction rate securities are more commonly known in the student
loan paper market where every 28 days the interest rate on these papers are determined
via the auction process. And that means that in the auction process it's very dynamic and
vital that there are buyers and sellers for this paper. And in February 2008, there weren't
any buyers. And that was about the time of the, probably at the peak of the upcoming
financial crisis. And this was one of those financial items just like mortgage backed
paper, some commercial backed paper, all those markets had problems. Some failed.
This was a, this was an area in the financial markets that failed.
So now after doing our, what I would consider, good faith efforts to try and resolve this
matter through the non-litigated process with Merrill Lynch, we find ourselves in a
situation where we now would desire to at least explore that possibility. And the
Department of Finance is fully prepared and ready to support and cooperate with the
efforts of the Corporation Counsel and special counsel in resolving this matter for the
County's benefit. I'm available to answer any questions on the technical areas of auction
rate securities. But I would have to defer on any legal strategies or issues to the
Corporation Counsel. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director. And, Members, -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: --the Chair forgot to recognize earlier, Mr. Medeiros to our proceedings this
morning. Members, as you heard the overview given to us from the Corporation Counsel
with regards to this matter, again what's on our agenda today is the consideration for a
$35,000 compensation for this particular law firm to at least explore this matter. No
formal complaint has been made at this point. So again before I turn matters over to you
for questions, Ed like to, you to keep that in mind, to keep our focus on that. I guess the,
the special counsel that's being considered, without going off into, too deep into the
particular case 'cause you've been given an overview by Director Young as well. And as
an FYI, Members, if you have a pressing need to ask about the qualifications of the
special counsel, we are available to contact them. They are readily awaiting our call if
you would want to ask them about their qualifications and so forth. That is available to
you as well. We would need to take a short recess though. But in the meantime do you
have any questions for Corporation Counsel or Director Young'? I see Mr. Victorino,
we'll start with you first.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you wanna keep it directly on this?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, sir. That's fine.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and that's line.
CHAIR MOLINA: Because we don't have a...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and, and I won't get into the case and all of that. I
have couple questions for you, Mr. Young, and then a couple real quick questions for you
and they're quick. Of this 32 million, how much of our portfolio is this 32 million?
Approximately, percentage wise? Just so that the public feels a little assurance that...
MR. YOUNG: As of today it would, it would probably represent less than 8 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just so that the public's comfortable with that idea,
32 million is 8 percent. Not to say it's great, but as you know, it's not 50 percent, or
40 percent. So that's important for the public to understand that. And, and secondly, on
these auctions, you said that we treated it as liquid all these years. As a procedure, every
28 days you would sell off whatever you needed and, and all that. That last settlement
that we got from Merrill Lynch, they gave us, I guess you said 40, and so we down to 30,
so they gave us 8 million? Is that, is that what I understand the amount'?
MR. YOUNG: Urn.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Remember you mentioned -MR. YOUNG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that there was a settlement. And then because you were
at 40.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Forty-four.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No. Forty, because forty, four came from the other
guys. USB [sic], right'?
MR. YOUNG: Four, four million was the result of a settlement with UBS -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. YOUNG: --and the New York Attorney General.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The other 40 was with...
MR. YOUNG: The other 40 was with Merrill.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MR. YOUNG: We have not settled with them. It is 32 million because 8 million of the 40 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. YOUNG: --have recently been resolved, we have reached some terms with Merrill in an
open market. It was not a settlement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh.
MR. YOUNG: It was an actual transaction.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That's what the clarification I wanted, Mr. Chair.
MR. YOUNG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Mr. Young, thank you. I, I that's what I was trying
to get, where that 8 million, and how did it come to where it is -MR. YOUNG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to 32. Okay. So I, I'm okay with that. Thank you. Now
I'll go to Ms. Villarosa. You said you were gonna do most of the legwork and all of that
stuff, which is fine. And I know of Goodsill Anderson Quinn and I mean, I've known,
and I've had dealings with them both ways in, in my life. I guess the question is, this
35,000--just so that the public's clear, and I'm clear--is really to explore the possibilities
of how strong our case would be should we tile a complaint. Am I correct'? And, if
that's what I heard you say?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yes. The money we estimated -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
--just in preliminary discussions, that it would cover the
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:
exploration, you know, the evaluation of our case, as well as the initial filing of a
complaint.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: But no further than that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. So if we got to that point -MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --then somehow, someway you'd have to come back to
this Council for additional--right, Mr. Chair?--additional monies or additional whatever,
right?
CHAIR MOLINA: I would assume so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would assume so. Okay, okay, okay. And the last
question I have for you is, you said this the first time for Maui County. But I would
imagine, you've done some research to find that this probably has happened--and I know
you mentioned about Cuomo and New York, and all that--but as individual municipalities
throughout the United States has probably run across this problem, especially lately.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Have you seen or researched as far as you can see--and
this is related to this, Mr. Chair--any success as far as litigation against various
companies--don't have to be Merrill Lynch--anybody else -MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
--as individuals, not class action, but individual
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
municipalities? Have you done any research in that area?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah, there was, as part of this networking group that I'm part of -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --I did receive a correspondence from Springfield, Massachusetts.
They were a municipality that had the very same issue with Merrill Lynch. And they
were successful in getting all of their money back plus their outside attorneys fees paid.
But I will say that, that I think that most, most other jurisdictions, this is handled at the
AG level. And I think that that's why I hadn't seen a lot of individual municipalities
having to take on this issue on their own. A lot of them were piggybacking, or you know,
joining in settlements with their AG's office.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I guess the question begs to be asked, Mr. Chair.
Maybe this is strange or, you know, you should correct me or stop me if I am...is our AG
or any of the other counties taking any action as far as you know?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, our office did meet with Mark Bennett, the State AG. And
they do have approximately S400 million in auction rate securities as well, outstanding
just like us. But at the time of the meeting they were not interested in pursuing legal
action.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: The other county that has a similar situation is City and County of
Honolulu. But their amount is much smaller. They have approximately $4 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And based on...wonder what the State will do, yeah?
...(chuckles)... Kind of interesting. Okay, I'll, I'll yield and let my other colleagues ask
questions. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. So we're talking about quite a sum of
money here, potentially. Mr. Medeiros, followed by Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahal°, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Villarosa, and, and maybe
Director Young, in the County purchasing these auction rate securities from Merrill
Lynch, and I think you did allude to it, the purchase agreement mandates or is stipulated
in that agreement that Merrill Lynch buy back what the County wants them to buy back?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, our position is that, that Merrill Lynch sold us these, they
represented, when they sold us these securities, that they were liquid investments -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --not long-term investments. But they were part, they knew that it
was gonna be part of our short-term investment portfolio.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. But part of the contract or whatever legal
document was executed in this purchase has a provision or a stipulation that they
purchase it back should the County want them to purchase it back'?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: That is something that we're gonna be discussing with the outside
counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it's not clear then -MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, this...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --under purchase agreement -MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --if that's available to the County?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I don't think anybody anticipated this happening as far as the
market failing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: You know it just wasn't something that was on anyone's radar
screen so, yeah. The agreement doesn't specifically address what happens when the
market fails and, you know, these securities can't be...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: You know this, it didn't, it wasn't anticipated.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So if there's no clause like that, I think I can see why
Merrill Lynch is reluctant to buy it back. Because seems like they're not mandated by
the contract to buy it back. So it has never happened before, in a case like this'? Okay,
that's interesting that there wouldn't be a clause on behalf of the County for something
like that. The law firm that is in the resolution is that a law firm that has an office or is
located in Hawaii'?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. On Oahu, I assume'?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And in the resolution, why are there different hourly
rates for the attorneys?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: That is the team that Goodsill Anderson has for its securities
litigation. Joachim Cox would be the primary attorney that would be heading this team.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. And so the resolution says for him, I believe, it's
up to 5450 an hour.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay, I, I think that's all I have for now,
Mr. Chairman. Thank you. Mahalo, Ms. Villarosa.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. The Chair would like to recognize Member
Johnson to our proceedings this morning. Good morning. And we have Member Nishiki
and Member Johnson would like to follow up with a question as well.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. I was listening to Kalbert and you mentioned
about the area of institutional investments were not covered in the New York State
Attorney General in addressing these areas. What's the difference, what other type of
investments were they successful in getting? And why institutional investments'? I don't
know what, what the difference.
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MR. YOUNG: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Director Young.
MR. YOUNG: We have actually contended or contested that designation. The New York
Attorney General settlement included for certain class of auction rate security holders.
So that could be individual investors, it could be nonprofit organization investors, it could
be municipal government entity investors or institutional investors which would be such
as the more commonly known, like mutual fund holders, for example. The settlement
definitely applied to individual investors. And it had definitely applied to, you know, the
smaller holders, I believe, including nonprofits. Merrill contends that it did not include
institutional investors and that Maui County either by its site or the amount of, of
securities it holds would be classed as "an institutional investor''. So one, we have
always, we, we have contested that designation. But that's the difference. So these class
actions have related to certain class of holders.
The UBS settlement, for example, Maui was, you know, Maui's holdings was deemed to
be appropriate or consistent with the settlement and that's how come it was out. Oh, it's
only with the Merrill discussion that right now we, as it goes we are currently still in
discussions with them about how to remedy our situation.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and when you say we are in discussions with them, how
to remedy this, who, who is them?
MR. YOUNG: The County of Maui, we have about eight, prior to February 2008 we had eight
different investor brokerages that we solicited to invest all of our short-term investments,
one of which was Merrill Lynch. At the time of the auction rate failure, we have...since
then we have been discussing, our Treasury Division has been discussing ongoing, almost
on a weekly basis, with Merrill Lynch, and now it's currently Merrill Lynch, Bank of
America or Bank of America Merrill Lynch. I don't know what the name is called, but
we are currently discussing with them on a weekly basis what does the market look like,
can we get out of these securities at essentially par value'? Par beim!, what we purchased
them for. And if there was any prospects of a settle, of a settlement short of any litigation
action'? So we are constantly exploring those options with them. But that's not a,
through the legal channels.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right, okay. Now for Corporation Counsel, because this is
going on, this $32 million is outside the area of what Kalbert is saying, a discussion is
occurring? Or is that part in parcel of the $32 million?
MR. YOUNG: We are discussing about the 32 million.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Also'?
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MR.YOUNG: No. We are specific, no we, we are specifically discussing the 32 million.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You, okay.
MR.YOUNG: One of the, one of the things that have happened is I mentioned that as of
February '08, the County of Maui used eight investment brokerages -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. YOUNG: --one of which was Merrill Lynch. Since this discussion on auction rate
securities with Merrill has come up, we have suspended doing business or trading with
Merrill Lynch.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: So we don't purchase any more securities from them until this matter is resolved
and it's, could be viewed as a leverage issue -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. YOUNG: --but frankly it's, it's just to help encoura g e moving some resolution or to, to
exemplify some due diligence on our part that, you know, we're not, we're not gonna
make a bad situation worse by continuing to deal when we're actually trying to negotiate
a settlement or a resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So, so they know that because of this S32 million
owing, you've not decided to put anymore money and deal with them.
MR. YOUNG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, so, so let me ask the question of the County of Honolulu,
the State of Hawaii, also in this similar circumstance. Is, and I, I, guess maybe that
would be the reason for this call. But why would we not enjoin them if they wanna be
partners in this suit? Is this, is there a, a reason maybe that they're not wanting to'? Or
that approach has been made'? Or they're not wanting to take legal action?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel or Mr. Finance Director, can you respond to this issue.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, we, we did actually pursue that route. Brian Moto and
Kalbert Young paid a personal visit to Mark Bennett at the AG's office. And we did
explain the County's situation and we wanted to see whether they were interested in
joining us because we had found out that that's how other municipalities around the
nation have been operating.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The State taking the...
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MS. 'Till A VILLAROSA: Right where the State takes the lead --

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MS. MITA VILLAROSA: --because they have usually more, you know, more money at stake.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
NIS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: But we were told that they were not interested in pursuing.
litigation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Moto, would you like to add anything further'?
MR. MOTO: Good morning, Committee Members. Mr. Bennett and his Deputy whom we met
in...yes, we met with them in March of this year. The other attorney that we met with,
with the Attorney General's office was Randall Nishiyama--who among Mr. Bennett's
staff is probably the one whoo knows more about these kinds of investments than others-said that they would, they, they listened to us, they consulted with their client, and
particularly the Director of Budget and Finance of the State of Hawaii. For their own
reasons they later informed us that they were not interested at that time, at that time in
pursuing legal action against Merrill Lynch. And actually, actually, well, actually, let me
correct that. They bought their securities from another investment bank, investment
brokerage so it wouldn't be Merrill Lynch. But I, I believe one reason why that is
because the securities are still paying interest. So even though they're not liquid, in other
words you can't get your principal back, your investment back -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. MOTO: --in the meantime the interest payments are still being made. So the County of
Maui is still collecting interest on these securities. In fact, the rate of interest is actually a
pretty good rate of interest, more than what other securities, investments produce. The
problem is that if we had to cash those securities, if we needed them, we couldn't do so.
They're not liquid.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, okay so then, then Honolulu also is, is taking that stance,
not wanting to be a part of it'? Or is it something that perhaps they don't see a benefit for
it to occur or they think that the market will improve and then they'll deal and buy back
it? I mean, you know, you're talking to 'em but you're not wanting to buy back this $32
million. Is there, is there really a reason why they're stonewalling like this'? Or is that
the reason why because you can't understand their action that you think that this action
needs to take place.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right, right. Yeah. I don't know why they're stonewalling.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Uh-huh. Okay, I'm done.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Was the Employees Retirement System contacted to
see what their holdings are'?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I don't believe so.
MR. MOTO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Would that be prudent to also find out from ERS, because I, I
mean they have very large holdings and if they're having a similar liquidity, you know,
problem. 1, I don't know, I mean it's a suggestion. But the other thing would be, have
we contacted Securities and Exchange Commission and has a formal complaint been
lodged?
MR. MOTO: Mr., Mr. Chairman?
CI IAIR MOLINA: Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Not with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. At this point
just with the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs and their Securities
Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay because, you know, my personal feeling. 'Cause, you
know, I use to be a licensed, you know, broker for securities and because that's the
regulatory agency where the majority of complaints are filed, if ...(Change Ktpc, Start
2/1)... similar municipalities are having this difficulty, I would think one of the first things
we would do is try to find out what is the SEC's position. You know, are they able to
exert any kind of influence because they were tremendous, you know, with, with the
monies that were given through the Obama Administration as far as leveraging or saving,
you know, these companies from total collapse and preventing a meltdown in the market.
The SEC has really been overseeing a great many of these problems much like the
mortgage companies so my, my thing would be let's exhaust our, you know, all of
possibilities. And if the SEC has not been contacted, that would've been one of the first
things that I would have done. So, you know, if you can, you know, do that or, you
know, if you can find out if this firm can do that I think that's the prudent thirw, to do.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah, those are good points. Thanks.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
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MR. MOTO: These are, that and on other points are things we would like to discuss with our
outside counsel. That's why we're asking you for this authorization. Quite frankly for
the County of Maui to pursue Merrill Lynch, Bank of America is like David and Goliath.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ...(Lairghio)...
MR. MOTO: And, and as the First Deputy, my First Deputy just mentioned most municipalities
don't take on a task like this. They look towards their State Attorney Generals to take the
vanguard 'cause it is such a daunting task. We want, we want the special counsel to send
a signal to Merrill Lynch, Bank of America that we mean business, and that we want to
take, we're going to take this very seriously, and we want an answer,
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I really appreciate that because I think part of what
should be in the equation is the power of the Securities and Exchange Commission. If
you're at risk of huge massive fines or some kind of penalty, or even the inability to
actually market certain, you know, types of securities, if you're restricted in any way as a
company, if that reputation is in any way sullied, and I mean it already has been, but I
look at SEC as being the regulatory entity that really controls what happens. And when
they begin an investigation, to me that is serious. So I would hope that you would do that
and also find out in the interim if Employees Retirement System, because they have huge
holdings. Even Kamehameha Schools, you know. I mean even like the assets of the
Trust, you know, for, you know, the Bishop Estate and, you know, the holdings that they
have any of those entities. They, they have massive amounts of capital. If that threat
exists across a wide spectrum that all those things are gonna be pulled and no future
business will go to Merrill Lynch, Bank of America, then you have that power to do that.
And I know our, the holdings really are substantial. Even if they may not have the same
value that they do now that power in coming forward is, is much enhanced for the County
by partnering with those other entities. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Members, is there a need to contact the
special counsel for questions? If not, then the Chair would like to offer a
recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, so ordered. The Chair would like to recommend a motion to approve
the resolution to authorizing the employment of special counsel, Goodsill Anderson
Quinn and Sti fel, A Limited Liability Law Partnership LLP, in the matters relating to
auction rate securities. And that would be for a total compensation of 535,000.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Chair, I move for the recommendation, for the recommended, I, 1
move to recommend adoption of the resolution as you had so read.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, I second the motion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. The motion to approve the resolution has been made by Committee
Vice-Chair Mateo and seconded by Member Baisa. Members, discussion? Seeing none,
oh, excuse me. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I, I think as Brian said, this is a David versus Goliath
but I like that scrap. I don't think that it is, you know, something that Maui County
because they have approached the State, and I don't know why their unwillingness. I'm
really surprised as the Corporation Counsel has prefaced in trying to hire Goodsill
Anderson and Quinn. Again, the fact that Ms. Villarosa is also wanting to work and
probably gain some expertise in this area, I think is commendable. And so for this reason
I am supporting this and, and looking forward to hopefully a successful adventure. And
so hopefully, you know, Brian, this is, this is good that you guys are implanting someone
here to learn at the same time, so that maybe in the next time we won't have to go out
there and we have our dedicated attorneys being able to light the good fight for us. So
anyway, thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki Members, any other discussion before the
Chair calls for the vote. And by the way, in the motion the Chair would like to ask for
your consideration to allow Staff to make any nonsubstantive changes to the resolution as
well. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So, Members, Chair will call for the vote. All those in favor signify
by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Balsa, Johnson, kaho`ohalahala, Medeiros,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair Molina.

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.:

Councilmember Pontanilla.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, the Chair will mark it eight ayes, with one excusal,
Member Pontanilla.
ITEM NO. 1(23):

LITIGATION MATTERS (SPECIAL COUNSEL AUTHORIZATION:
ELMER STEPHEN WEREB, ET AL. V. MAUI COUNTY, ET AL.; CIVIL
NO. 09-00198 TINTS LEK) (C.C. No. 09-14)

CHAIR MOLINA: Alright, Members, moving on to our next Committee Item. Litigation
Matters, Committee of the Whole Item 1(23). Special Counsel Authorization: Elmer
Stephen Wereb, et al. v. County of Maui, et al.; Civil No. 09-00198 JMS LEK. The
Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated November 13 1h , 2009, from the
Corporation Counsel's office, transmitting a proposed resolution entitled
"AUTHORIZING THE EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL GASS WEBER
MULLINS, LLC IN ELMER STEPHEN WEREB, ET AL. VS. COUNTY OF MAUI
[sic], ET AL., CIVIL NO. 09-00198 .1MS LEK". The purpose of the proposed resolution
is to authorize the employment of the Gass Weber Mullins, LLC, as special counsel to
represent the County of Maui in this particular case for a total compensation of 5150,000.
The complaint alleges the wrongful death of Dennis Wereb at the Lahaina Police Station
on September 28` 11 , 2008. And joining us now from the Corporations Counsel's office to
give us an overview of this matter is Ms. Moana Lutey, as well as Police Chief, Gary
Yabuta, is here as well to respond to any questions. At this point, the Chair will turn over
the microphone to Ms. Lutey.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Good morning. On Friday, September 26' h , 2008, police arrested
Dennis Patrick Wereb at the Wharf Cinema Center in Lahaina for threatening a minor
with a knife while riding on the Maui Bus. Mr. Wereb was taken to the Lahaina Police
Station and placed in a cell with another inmate. On Monday, September 29' 11 , 2008,
Mr. Wereb was discovered deceased in his bed. Mr. Wereb's death was from natural
causes. At the time of his death he was 47 years old. A, a complaint was filed against
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only the County of Maui at this point, on May 4' 1 ', 2009. And I'm asking Council to
approve Gass and Weber as outside counsel.
We have agreed to a flat fee for the attorney's fees in this case in an amount not to exceed
$135,000. This fee would be made in incremental payments which become larger as the
trial date gets closer with the largest payment being made on the day of trial. Although
we do have an agreement for $135,000 for attorney's fees, the payments may be far less
than that amount if this case does not actually proceed to trial. If the payments are less
than $135,000, the difference would be released to the County Treasury. In any event,
the County's, I'm, I'm sorry, the cost of the attorney's fees will not exceed $135,000.
The difference between the amount I'm asking and this flat fee amount is a cushion for
the costs that are compensable as allowed by statute.
What's happening right now in this case is that I am handling the majority of this work. I
have filed all pleadings, all discovery, and all motions. Outside counsel is being brought
in for case strategy and trial. And this is actually a common practice in cases like this. It
is in the best interest for the County to retain outside counsel in a case like this, because
plaintiffs have requested or asserted a 1983 claim, which means that there is a potential
for a large judgment. And bringing in outside counsel gives us the ability to retain
control over this case. If we choose not to retain outside counsel, the insurance company
can select their attorney in this matter and ask that we tender our Self-Insured Retention
Fund. The cost athe Self-Insured Retention Fund is $500,000.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Lutey. Chief Yabuta, do you have any additional
comments you'd like to make before I turn matters over to the Committee for questions'?
Okay, seeing none. So, Members, again this is a request for special counsel for a total
compensation of 150,000, and if this Committee decides to support this at a later point
down the road, Corporation Counsel will come back with, I guess, a proposal to further
discuss strategy and any potential settlement that may be out there. But that is of course
far down the road. So for today, again, your line of questions if possible you could keep
it towards the authorizing of this particular special counsel with regards to their
qualifications or any just general questions with the, the case itself.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: So at this point, Chair will recognize Mr. Victorino for...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, and I'll, I'll try to keep the questions
very simple. The qualifications by this particular law firm, they specialize in this type of
litigation'? Ms. Lutey, I guess. Yeah.
MS. LUFFY: Yes. Well, I was just waiting for the Chair's permission.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh yeah, okay. ... (chuckles)..
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MS. LUTEY: Thank you though. Yes. Actually, Ric Gass would be the attorney that would be
assigned to us for trial. He does high stakes litigation, a typically large death med mal
types cases as well as police litigation. And he does this all over the country.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. LUTEY: So he specialized in large stakes litigation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I guess the question I have is very, very, very simple.
Is he very successful?
MS. LUTEY: He actually tried a case for the County of Maui. It was, I don't remember the
person's first name now - it just escaped me. But the last name was Fifita versus County
of Maui, where a man fell from a County tree while trimming it. I don't know if this
rings a bell for you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. LUTEY: But he ended up being an incomplete paraplegic. And that was tried here in
Circuit Court by Mr. Gass on behalf of the County. And he was successful in that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay. I guess the rest of the questions would fall
under Executive Session, and we're not gonna go do that today. So I would support this,
Mr. Chair. I, I'll wait till you give your recommendation, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members, questions with regards to the
proposed special counsel request from Corporation Counsel? Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISI-MK': Yeah. I, I think I heard you say something about an insurance
company. And, and, how does this fall into the selection of an attorney'?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Lutey.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is there an, an insurance company involved in this?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Lacy.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So this Mr. Gass, is that his name'? Last name'?
MS. LUTEY: His first name is Ric. And his last name is Gass.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Their office is within the State'?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Lutey.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. No. He's currently, resides in the State of Florida.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I know that I read in here that you've worked, or, or people
have worked here so therefore that's a, a, reason why. The County has no one within the
State that you can use that has this expertise?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Lutey.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Police litigation is a very limited field. There's only one other
defense attorney that I'm aware of in this State that does that for a living outside of that
and he's currently been retained in another wrongful death case that we have. It's just,
it's a very specialized area of law.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I, I just, I just, Mr. Chairman, I, I just can't believe that
someone here from Florida has to be called compared to somebody within the State,
that's all. I mean, there's no one in the State that handles situations like this that you
know of? I mean we've had, I'm sure many departments that have had to deal with
perhaps somebody dying in jail or whatever, and, and this type of suit. None?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Lutey.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: To your knowledge?
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. There are a number of plaintiff's counsel that handle these types of
cases, but even in that it's a very limited amount because of the area of law. In terms of
defense, the only firm I'm aware of that does it in this State is Ken Robbins' firm. That's
the only other firm in this State.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I've heard that name.
MS. LUTEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and, why not him'?
MS. LUTEY: Because Mr. Robbins' firm is very small. There's only himself and two
associates. And he's currently been retained in the Durham case which is a wrongful
death case that I'm also handling. And in that particular case there's currently 21 defense
counsel, and nine plaintiff's counsel. So it's very active and very busy. And to take on
another wrongful death case like this I think would be too much Ibr a firm of his size.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You are thinkim!, that for him or did you approach him?
NIS. LUTEY: I did not ask him that.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You don't think that would be a logical question to go and ask
him?
MS. LUTEY: We can ask him that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Other than you, speculating that he's too busy, I guess is my
question.
MS. LUTEY: I, I think there is a couple aspects to that question and part of that is also that we
do this through the procurement, selection type of committee where we try to sort of
distribute work out. So that's one of the considerations I believe that would've been
taken into account on this matter. But in addition we would look at the size of the firm to
determine whether or not that is. And the other consideration in this is that in my
assessment Ric Gass is the absolute best selection for this type of case.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I, I just wanted to, so it is a
wrongful death case?
MS. LUTEY: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And you did mention, Ms. Lutey, in your opening
comments that the deceased died of natural causes.
MS. LUTEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And that was determined by autopsy by a Medical
Examiner?
MS. LUTEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Here on Maui, I guess? Because I don't know if we,
we don't have a Medical Examiner on staff right? We contract that out?
MS. LUTEY: I don't know how the Coroner -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. LUTEY: --is in place. But it was done here on Maui.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I, I had other questions but I don't think the
questions I could ask in open session. But so being that the counsel that we're trying to
retain is from Florida so your projections of cost includes the travel from Florida back
and forth?
MS. LUTEY: The only time, the answer to that is yes, and the only time that he would be
present here in State is during trial.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So you, you would think that would require only one
roundtrip?
MS. LUTEY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Alright, thank you, Ms. Lutey. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any other questions for Corp.
Counsel or the Chief of Police, before the Chair makes a recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, Chair will entertain a motion to approve the proposed
resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING THE EMPLOYMENT OF SPECIAL COUNSEL
GASS WEBER MULLINS, LLC IN ELMER STEPHEN WEREB, ET AL. V. MAUI
COUNTY, ET AL., CIVIL CASE NO. 09-00198 .1MS LEK". And this would be for a
total compensation of $150,000.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Chairman, I move for the adoption of the proposed resolution as
you had so recognized.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Mr. Chair, I second the motion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. The motion has been made by Committee Vice-Chair Mateo and
seconded by Committee Member Balsa. Members, discussion? Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair, yeah. I am going to reluctantly support this. 1, I, I
just think that there is no one but in Florida that has this type of expertise. The other, the
other concern that I, I had was the speculation of the attorney that the firm of Robbins
perhaps was too busy without really asking. And, and so, you know, when things like
that occur I just have a, a little concern. But I guess I will support it anyway. In ending,
I, I just wanna say that being that the Chief is here and I know that I've heard this from
other Members. Nothing against you because I think that we've seen you, since you've
taken office, reachint2, out to communities. And I just wanna commend you for that effort
that you're taking to expose yourself and, and listen to members of the community that
have been really happy with that action that you've taken. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Chair's...oh, go ahead. Oh, before I recognize
Mr. Medeiros, Chair would just like to...certainly I can understand your concern,
Mr. Nishiki, with regards to the cost. And my only hope is that when, if and when a
court date is established that it be restricted to one roundtrip as you had mentioned,
Mr. Medeiros, and hopefully it's during off season.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ...(Laughter)...
CHAIR MOLINA: So, anyway, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. 1 just wanted to further ask
Corporation Counsel, was this law firm recommended by anyone or you're familiar with
this law firm doing this kind of work?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Lutey.
MS. LUTEY: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros, actually I worked with them. They were retained also
in the Kaina lawsuit which was also a wrongful death case involving the Maui Police
Department. So I've worked with them but we also had them in Fifita, which is a
non-police case.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And, and their only office or branch is in Florida?
They don't have offices in other states?
MS. LUTEY: He was also stationed out of Wisconsin. But I don't keep, I, I don't know if he
has satellite offices anywhere else. I just know that when I correspond with him, in
written form, it's to Florida.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. And, and, Mr. Chairman, I think I share the same
sentiments as Member Nishiki, that when you look at a phone directory, the pages of
attorneys available only in Hawaii is astounding. But I, I can imagine throughout the
United States, in some states closer to us like California, you know, or Oregon, or
Washington. So, you know, I'll support it because I think it's important for us but it's
really hard to understand how we need to hire somebody from Florida. But, thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Lutey, just to, just follow up and then we'll go to Mr. Victorino.
MS. LUTEY: I just have a brief comment to that. Thank you, Chair. Councilmember Medeiros,
part of the issue here is that we run solicitations asking for people as part of the
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procurement process to submit letters of interest. And unless we get letters of interest
from people in California or anywhere else, there's really no way for us to know whether
one, they're interested, and two, are available for this type of litigation. But because we
have a prior history with Mr. Gass, he regularly submits a letter of interest when that
procurement period comes up. So I just wanna be clear that it's not as though I can pick
up the phone book and call someone in California and say, hey, do you do police
litigation and if so, are you interested?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, I just wanted to follow that up, Mr. Chairman. So
what is the solicitation process for Corp. Counsel to get the word out of interested
attorney firms that would like to submit their proposal?
MS. LUTEY: We do advertisements in the newspapers. I'm not sure...if it's Statewide.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: How do you do it nationally?
MS. LUTEY: Oh, in the State Bar Journal. And then it's also posted online -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. LUTEY: --under our caption. It gives you the form and everything. You can just print it
and go.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that information.
MS. LUTEY: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahal°,

Mr.

Chairman.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Mr. Victorino, speaking on the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And Mr. Medeiros asked the same questions I
was gonna ask, how this was all came about so that answered that. And I think the other
part, when it comes to litigation, specialty, track record, and workability, being able to
work and knowing the person you're going work with is very important no matter where
they come from. Let me be very honest. You know and this is something I've learned in
my years in litigation in insurance. If you go, you go to the people you know can do the
job. In our case, we don't have to go to no procurement. We don't have to go advertise.
We go to who we want to go. And I think that's very important. You must feel
comfortable and confident that, that person's gonna do the job rig h t for this County and
the people. It's our money.
So I thank you, Ms. Lutey, for doing your due diligence. You answered the question
`cause I know it's just not call one person. You know, you do have a procedure in place.
And I thank you for taking that. And that answered the question so that the public knows
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that we just not only one person, we don't check any. We do, you know, do have
methods of makinL sure that they, those who can or are willing or have the ability, the
specialty to do this. And that's another thing, specialty is very important. You know, we
have tons of attorneys in the, in the phone books. But how many specialize in certain,
especially high stakes litigation? Very few, very few. So I thank you, Ms. Lutey. And I
thank you, Mr. Moto, for doing your job. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
,

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Victorino. Seeing no other questions, the
Chair will call for the vote on Committee of the Whole, Item 1(23). All those in favor
signify by sayinL "aye".
,

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair mark it eight ayes, one excusal,
Member Pontanilla.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Balsa, Johnson, Kaho`ohalahala, Medeiros,
Nishiki, Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo, and Chair Molina.

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.:

Councilmember Pontanilla.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of resolution.
CHAIR MOL.INA: Members, it is 10:30. I believe it is time for our morning break. Ten
minutes, 15 minutes, Members?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Ten.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright, let's take ten. Alright, Members, we will call this meeting for a
recess. Let us return to the Chambers at 10:40. .. .(gavel).
. .

RECESS:

10:31 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:43 a.m.
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ITEM NO. 30: COUNCIL MEMBER CONFLICTS OF INTEREST (C.C. No. 09-315)
CHAIR MOLINA: . .(gave0. . . The December 3 Id , 2009, Committee of the Whole Meeting is
now back in session. Members, thank you for that break. We have one more item on our
Agenda for discussion today. And that is Committee of the Whole, Item 30. The
Committee is receipt of the following, County Communication No. 09-315, from the
Council Chair, relating to the matter of conflicts of interest that may arise from service by
a Council Member on the board of directors or executive committee of a nonprofit or
for-profit corporation. Number two, a correspondence dated November 17 1h , 2009, from
the Council Chair, transmitting the following: (a) A copy of a request dated
October 22 H , 2009, to the Department of the Corporation Counsel seeking a legal
opinion; (b) A copy of a response dated November 3 d , 2009, from the Corporation
Counsel; and (c) A proposed resolution entitled "AMENDING THE RULES OF THE
COUNCIL RELATING TO VOTING". The purpose of the proposed resolution is to
clarify the Council rules relating to Council Members' disclosure requirements and
abstention from voting. Well, Members, there you have it. Joining us from the
Corporation Counsel's office today, we have Adrianne Heely in our Chambers this
morning. Good morning.
MS. HEELY: Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: And so at this point the Chair would like to turn matters over to Council
Chair Mateo for further discussion on Committee of the Whole, Item 30.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. I, I guess, you know, I just need
to more or less state the, the reason for my actual submission of this item to Committee.
And as it was mentioned earlier, by Ms., by Ms. Balsa, the issue is not a new one. The
issue has been ongoing for a number of years. And more recently, 1997, it was then
Council Chair Kawano, that submitted a, a recommendation or, or a request for an
opinion. And the issue on conflict of interest or whether or not Members should continue
to serve on boards and commissions has really not been completely discussed by the
sitting Council. And I think it was time for us to have the discussion, more, more so,
more so now as we prepare to go into Budget. The issue will continue to arise if we do
not address it. So I have made the item available.
We have gotten an opinion from Corporation Counsel, and as I have indicated it is not a
new issue. We need to discuss it, and whether or not we just have the discussion today I
think it's an incredible step in the right direction for all of us. My purpose and intent of
submission was to allow the Members the opportunity to, to have the dialogue on this real
specific issue because it is one of major importance. And yes, it is one that has a lot to do
with how we, as elected officials, are perceived by the general public. So with that being
said, we did hear the comments by a nonprofit organization this morning, and I'm, Fin
grateful for his comments, as well as some of the other comments I have received from
other nonprofit organizations. So with that being said, I am very grateful in having the
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other Members, and giving them the opportunity to now share their manao on this very
important issue. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mateo, and I certainly thank you for bringing this
item up for discussion. And as you've stated and it's been stated by others as well, it's a,
it's an issue that's been bandied about for many, many years and talked about, so. And I
appreciate you also providing an option for the Committee to consider a resolution with
regards to amending the rules of the Council as well. So if that is something the
Committee would like to explore, look into as well, the Chair is open to that. But, but for
the time being, I think just having the discussion in an open forum and actually it's a real
education process for us all. It's not only a, you know, for the general public, the
Members as well. And as some Members have stated that they, they are Members of
boards and nonprofits. 1, myself, I currently sit on a board, and I have sat on other boards
in the past. So, anyway I now open the floor for discussion. I know, I believe Member
Balsa had a question for Corporation Counsel earlier this morning. So, Member Baisa,
I'll turn the floor over to you.
COIJNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. The question that I would like the,
to address to Corp. Counsel for an answer was the matter of what constitutes financial
interest. But before we get into that, I wanted to ask you, ask something else and to read
from a, share with, from a memo, just to clarify something. All of us have in our packets
today a memo dated November 3' d , to Chair, from a Ms. Heely, Deputy Corporation
Counsel. Everybody can find that.
CHAIR MOLINA: It is at the, the back of the...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's kind of towards the back of, of the pack, of the item in your
binder. If everybody has it, on Page 7, it was mentioned earlier that there might be a
conflict with the Charter, the Maui County Charter concerning ethics, ethical standards.
Well, in this, in this page, Ms. Heely opines, in the meantime because they really, really
hadn't had time to discuss or, or research possible proposed legislation prohibiting
Council Members from serving on a corporation's hoard of directors or executive
committee. It states, the board recognizes the importance of community volunteerism
and is not, by this opinion, saying that service on a nonprofit board or executive
committee violates the ethical standards set by the Charter. So I think we already have a
clear opinion from the Board of Ethics, in that matter. I just wanted to point that out, and
now I'll ask my question. Can you please kind of explain to us what constitutes financial
interest? .. .(Change Tape, Side 2B)..
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Heely.
MS. HELIX: Mahalo and good morning, Committee Chair, Council Chair Mateo. and Members
of the Committee. Thank you for the opportunity to comment. Before this, defining
financial interest I just wanted to comment on your comment that you just made in
reading the whole sentence or paragraph that the board opined on. It goes on to state
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rather, this opinion simply cautions that once an individual engages in such activity,
occasions may arise where that activity creates a conflict of interest or the appearance of
one. In such a situation, the administrator, appointed elected official or employee, should
disclose the conflict. So I think this is the purpose of the proposed resolution in regards
to amending the, the Council Rules in regards to voting and disclosure. And I think
something recently just happened in your Budget and Finance Committee where
disclosure was made. You guys are following your Rules of Council, but there's the
motion made and the motion failed. So what happens then? So you had to vote, right.
You couldn't abstain from voting which created a conflict between what the Board of
Ethics have previously ruled in disclosing and abstaining from voting when a Member
serves on a board or commission or a nonprofit agency. That nonprofit agency is before
the Council for some, some matter, a grant, et cetera, and they, and the Board advised the
Council Member to abstain from voting to avoid that appearance of impropriety or
conflict of interest. So that's what that whole paragraph state. They kind of give
guidance. So I think the proposed resolution clarifies that, that issue.
In regards to financial interest, I researched our rules, the Board of Ethics Rules. the
Charter provisions, as well as Maui County Code. There's nothing that specifically
defines financial interest. But the Board of Ethics Rules has a certain subchapter that
describes, describes what all Council Members, appointed elected officials, and boards
and commission members are supposed to report on their financial disclosure statements.
The contents of that financial disclosure form which, you know, any office...officership,
directorship, any loans that they may have, any mortgage that they may have, any
security interest, et cetera. And I also looked at our sister counties' council rules and
neither does Honolulu or Kauai County have definitions of financial interest. But
interestingly enough the Big Island does have a definition of financial interest where it
means an interest held by a Council Member, his or her spouse or dependent children,
which is, and it lists six criteria: an ownership interest in a business; a creditor interest in
an insolvent business; an employment or perspective employment; an ownership interest
in real or personal property; a loan or other debt or interest; or a directorship or
officership in a business. So it's really narrow and specifically defines financial interest
in the council rules of the Hawaii County. But we don't have anything that describes
financial interest. Past Board of Ethics opinions have kind of gave some guidance, what
is a financial interest if it directly affects the agency or the Council Member, et cetera.
But in terms of an actual definition, we don't have anything in our Rules, Charter, or
Code, Maui County Code.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much. It's very clear. The reason I bring it up is
because I don't know if this is misunderstood and maybe you can clarify if it's a
misunderstanding that there is concern that by participating in this board, that one will
have some financial gain from this. And so I'm kind of wondering, you know, what is
that? What is the concern'? That you gonna be paid, that you gonna get a free trip, that
you're going to, you know, get something of value. And is that where we're going'?
`Cause, you know, if that is the case, that becomes really muddy. Because if you were
on, say for instance the MEO Board of Directors and you were the Chair of the Council
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and you became the Chair of the MEO Board and as a result of that, you arc asked to
participate in a trip to Washington DC or to a training conference or whatever. What is
that'? You know, it gets really messy. However, board members as a rule, I don't know
anybody who gets paid on a nonprofit board. I know that on fbr-profit boards, members
get paid. But on nonprofit boards, there is really no pay. There, like I said, there might
be a lunch, there might be a trip to a training conference, in which you're gonna spend
more money than you gonna get because you always have to pay for extra things on these
trips that nonprofits cannot reimburse. So, you know, I was, I think we need to be clear,
what is it that one gains personally, financially, from these participations and what is
prohibited, and what is not?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Balsa. I guess we have also, in the midst,
Corporation Counsel Moto, as well to add in to your or give further comments to your
question.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you.
MR. MOTO: Yes, good, good morning again, Committee Members. Mr. Chairman, first of all
let me say that our, our opinion hinges a lot and does closely reference the Board of
Ethics opinions that have been published. And as our opinion notes, Corporation
Counsel is not the Board of Ethics and our opinions don't substitute for their opinion,
their advice. But when we look at their, their opinions, and in particular, 97A-3, which
was the one that was as referenced in the Council Chair's memorandum to us, there's a
portion that is quoted, that we quote on Page 3, at the very bottom of our opinion. This is
taken straight out of a Board of Ethics Advisory Opinion No. 97A-3. This is the one that
was submitted to Council Chair, then Council Chair, Pat Kawano, in which the Board of
Ethics states that a Council Member's participation on the hoard or executive committee
of a private, nonprofit agency, although not incompatible with his or her official duties
may tend to impair the Council Member's independence of judgment in the performance
of his or her duties. I think that, that's really the key element.
It's not so much what's financial benefit or material benefit might an individual Council
Member get from a nonprofit but rather, and again, these are things one would clarify
with the Board of Ethics, but as I interpret what they have said, what I think what they're
really saying is you really can have only one master. And if you, if you're on the board
of directors of a nonprofit organization, you are serving in a fiduciary capacity. You,
you're, you're acting in their interest for the interest of that organization. And if you are
a Council Member or any other public official for that matter, then you have other duties.
You have duties to that, to the, to the County, to the public.
And in this particular opinion, the Board of Ethics opinion, what they're trying to address
is what happens when you are a County official, and you are being asked to vote on a
matter that directly concerns or affects the nonprofit agency of which, to which you have
fiduciary duties. You know, who's interest are you going to put foremost? Which hat arc
you gonna be wearing'? You know, are you gonna be wearing, you gonna. public
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official's hat or the nonprofit organizations hat? And, and I think that's what the Board
of Ethics tried to key on when it refers to independence of judgment.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: So -CHAIR MOLINA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --I think the problem has arisen because we don't have clear
direction. We don't have a clear policy. It would be much clearer to everyone and
everyone to know, would understand the rules if it was said, you may sit on a nonprofit
board of directors; however, if there is something that comes up that is gonna benefit that
agency, you don't vote. And let's not ask each other, should I be excused or not be
excused or have all this ambivalence. Let's have a clear policy. And if I accept a seat on
a board of directors, I understand that if something comes up in regards to benefiting that
agency, that I disclose my conflict and do not vote.
But, you know, we've kind of had this wishy-washy thing where we say, oh, please
declare your conflict. So I say, okay I sit on the .1. Walter Cameron Center Board and I
ask, I move that I be excused from voting and my Member say, oh, no we don't agree,
you know, and the motion kill, is killed. I don't know why we do that. Why don't we
just have a clear direction, and that way, you know, then, then there's no
misunderstanding. If you going to accept a seat on the board, you have to understand that
you cannot vote on matters that are gonna benefit that agency because you have this
fiduciary responsibility as a board member. You know one of the duties of board
members is to further the corporation's objectives and to make sure that it stays healthy
and produces its mission. That's your job as a board member. So there is a conflict.
There is a conflict. So, you know, 1 think We need a clear policy. We've been
wishy-washy about this and that's why we're here.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and, and I think, Gladys, you just said it. And, and I
think that when I read the board's opinion that Mr. Moto, via the November 7 th cover
letter from our Chair, and, and I think that this once and for all, clears the air. If, because
if I can read from that opinion, and I'll read it to the end so that it's real clear. If you turn
to Page 3, if Members haven't read it, the opinion says, and this was again, solicited from
the then, 1, 1 think he was a Chair, Mr. Kawano. Thank you, Mr. Mateo, for nodding up
and down. And, and, and this is what it says. It says, in that opinion, from the Ethics
Commission, based on the foregoing provisions of the Code of Ethics, prior decisions of
the Board, and the written and oral testimony of various Council Members and
representatives of nonprofit agencies, the Board is of the opinion that a Council
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Member's participation on the board or executive committee of a private, nonprofit
agency, although not incompatible with his or her official duties, may tend to impair the
Council Member's independence of judgment in the performance of his or her official
duties. Therefore, the Board advises Council Members that if they serve on a board of
directors or executive committee of a nonprofit agency in any capacity, voting, honorary,
or ex-officio member, they should not, they should not vote on matters before the Council
that directly affect that nonprofit agency. However, once the involvement with the
nonprofit agency is disclosed to the other Council Members, the Member involved with
the nonprofit agency is not prohibited from participation, or participating in discussion on
matters affecting the nonprofit agency.
Then it goes to say, further on, the Board is of the opinion that Section 10-1.c [sic] of the
Code of Ethics does not prohibit a Council Member from participating in discussion and
voting on matters that indirectly affect the nonprofit agency. For instance, it is not
contrary to Section 10-4.1.c for a Council Member to participate in approving a lump
sum appropriation for general funds to be awarded by the Grants Review Committee or
by another department of the County. A Council Member could also vote on funding for
an athletic park even though he or she is involved in a little league organization because
of the benefit is direct.
I think, I think the question that may arise as Gladys said, is that in this opinion, it is not
saying to Council Members you cannot be a board member. And, and, and let's get that,
let's get that answer from the Corporation Counsel because I don't see it. Is that a fact?
That people can sit on the board, like Mike Victorino vehemently said, I'm going to serve
on the board. Isn't that okay? So we can say, Mike, go ahead, do it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, yes. That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISI-UK]: Okay. All it is saying is that when it comes to a meeting, you
so say that you sit on the board, and if there is a funding situation, and this is where I
think the question when I sat on the Council, and, and this discretion was real clear. But
maybe you need to tell us again. When it is a direct funding, say in the Budget, and it is
for 250,000 for Food Bank, you cannot vote. flowever, when the entire Budget comes
up, and the Food Bank appropriation now is within that whole budget, then you can vote.
Is that, is that -CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --a, a good example'?
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, yes, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES
council of the county of Maui
December 3, 2009

MR. MOTO: The, the issue is gonna be, is it direct or indirect'?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. And, and, and so as Gladys said and, I think, you know,
I, I, I thank Mr. Mateo because for once and for all, I think this has become real clear.
And if it isn't, I think that Council Members should now, or say that they don't
understand because, Mr. Chairman, if this is the rule that we're going to follow, then so
be it. But if it isn't and other Members still have a question of' it, today is the day to open
your mouth and your heart and, and, and let's discuss it in this setting today. And, and,
and I thank you, Mr. Mateo, because I think that, for me, sits well. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Just if I could ask Corporation Counsel,
with regards to the opinion that Mr. Nishiki so eloquently read. A Council Member who
sits on a board makes it clear to the body that he or she will not be voting because of any
potential conflict. Now does this prohibit them from actively lobbying their fellow
Council Members? For example, saying, you know, although I cannot vote on this
particular funding request, however, I would ask for the Member's consideration. They
can still participate in the discussion. Can they still lobby or is that prohibited as well?
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, well, I guess first of all, the term lobby to me means something a
little different. But, I, I, I think the opinion is clear in saying that once a, a directorship or
other relationship is disclosed, that person is pretty much free to say whatever they want
as part of discussion. And the reason why that's the case is because once you make the
disclosure, everybody else knows. And they will make a judgment presumably as to how
much creditability or weight to give to your words because they know of your
relationships and your interest.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, and I think, I think the word you wanted
to say instead of lobbying is maybe -CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --advocate or something of that nature. You know, lbr the,
for the, for the, for the other nonprofit or for the group that's interested. Something
which, you know, lobby has a very negative connotation and I never lobby for anything,
excuse me. But, you know I, I thankful for the clarification that you guys have brought
forth, Corporation Counsel. Because, you know, now it really clearly states, if this is
what we are adopting, and what you're saying, that my fellow Councilmember Nishiki,
and, and Mateo, and even Ms. Balsa has basically said, we can now serve on any board
we want to. But when it comes to matters for which that board comes to this Council for
a decision, at that point, I just abstain from voting. I mean, in other words I just won't
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participate. I won't vote. I can participate, I can advocate, I can give all the dissertations
I want to, but when it comes down to the vote, you step back. Right? And I think that's
what you're basically saying in a nutshell, this is what this does. Am I correct, Mr. Moto,
or Ms. Heely, or both'?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. NEELY: Yes. You are correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And, and with that, that also gives me another point
that has not been mentioned. That now nonprofits when they ask a Council Member or
anybody to serve, knowingly knowing that, that person now cannot participate if matters
come before this Council. Hey, now they gonna think about that also. So that may not
be that conflict of interest that people like to tack on to what we do. You know we serve
because we wanna serve. As long as you tell me I can serve, I'm a happy camper. I
understand the justification and the ramifications. No problem. But the point that I
wanted to make sure that we all understand that if the clarification, the way I've stated to
you and you said yes, too, then the public, the nonprofits and all that can feel assured that
we can still participate, advocate, but the final point is we cannot vote. And that's the,
and so long as that's the only thing, Mr. Moto and Ms. Heely, be it the Chair is correct,
then I can support this. And that's, that's all I want made perfectly clear.
All the rest, financial and all that, let's leave that out the door, because I think anybody
who does these things really understands that. But I can or any Member can be a part of
any nonprofit or for-profit for that matter, 'cause it doesn't just say nonprofit, right,
for-profit board, however, anything coming before this Council, that person will
automatically, you don't have to ask for abstention. You know, in other words,
Mr. Chair, I'm a board member of MEO, and I will not be voting. End of story right'?
We don't have to have, put anybody, and I think that's the other thing, a lot of times we
vote feeling like, wow, we don't wanna make Ms. Baisa or, or Mr. Molina, or Mr. Mateo,
or anybody feel had because, you know, we know they're not getting any gain out of this,
yeah.
So my final question, and I just want it clear so the public understands, we vote for this,
all it does is ensure that we will not vote on any matter for which we are member of or
director of nonprofit or for-profit board.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MR. MOTO: Yes. On matters directly affecting that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That organization.
MR. MOTO: --organization.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So all that, I'm clear. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Before opening the floor for questions,
Staff, I'd like to get some clarification for you.
MS. HAMMAN: Yes, I just wanna clarify that the current rules do prohibit a Member that is
requesting to abstain from voting from advocating the Member's interest on which the
abstention is based during the discussion. The current rule does that as well as the
proposed amendment to the Rules of Council, and that would be in the new Subsection E,
of Rule 8.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Members, I guess we're working off the resolution attached to the
November 3' 6 , 2009 letter from Ms. Heely. If you look on the second page, I believe
that's where Staff is referencing. Subsection E.
MS. HAMMAN: That's correct.
CHAIR MOLINA: With regards to advocating once you've declared that you are a member of a
particular entity and you will not be voting, then you shouldn't be, well, again, not using
the word lobbying, but advocating or trying to persuade other Members to support your
cause so...which was related to my earlier question to Mr. Moto.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The, is that the one, November 3' 6 , 3' 6 , 2009, from
Ms. Heely?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, that's the resolution attached to the November 3' 6 , it's way on the
back of your...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, way in the back. Yeah, yeah, yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. It's on the second page, if you look, Mr. Victorino, E.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR MOLINA: Subsection E.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's only two pages. And she's referring to E?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. It's where...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Abstaining member's participation?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Abstaining member's part, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So it says, I'll, I'll read it then. So maybe I'm -CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --reading it wrong, but it says, abstaining member's
participation. Right, Ms. Heely? That's the one, E. Any abstaining member shall be
permitted to participate in the discussion of the matter; provided, that the member shall
refrain from advocating the member's interest on which the abstains, abstinence, -CHAIR MOLINA: Abstention.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --abstention, excuse me, excuse me, is based during the
discussion; and further provided, that the Member shall not attend any executive meeting
on this matter. So it's saying it's permitted to participate in the discussion, but can, but
has to refrain from advocating the Member's interest on which the abstention was taken.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can you clarify that?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: ...(Chuckic.0...
CHAIR MOLINA: Who wants it? Staff or Corporation Counsel'?
MS. HAMMAN: That, that's right. I think that's what the Council Rule is saying. I don't think
that, that was addressed in the Board of Ethics opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. HAMMAN: So it's just the Council Rules that have that limitation. The current Council
Rule as well as the proposed amendment.
CI IAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm not arguing that. I just want clarification. What is
participation versus advocating?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Moto.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Maybe that's what I'm trying to get to.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
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MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman. First of all, just to let, you know, Corporation Counsel does not
draft these rules. I mean, you know, we didn't, these rules are done by your, it's
considered a legislative matter. The, but when I see, when I took a look at E, it seems to
me, unfortunately, E is trying to cover a lot of different situations. You know, the, the,
looking at the proposed resolution, the C, that you see on Page 1, you can see how it's
been heavily modified to specifically address a situation where a Council Member is on a
board of directors, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MOTO: The problem with E, is that it's kind of addressing more situations than that,
situations where, for example, you're, you're, you're voting on a matter where your wife
is a business owner that's gonna be affected by your vote or somethin(J, like that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MOTO: And I can, I, I, I don't, since I didn't write this I don't know specifically why they,
they put in that proviso clause, provided that the Member shall refrain from advocating
Member's interest. All I will say is that from the, as I read the Board of Ethics opinions,
I don't think those opinions go into that level of detail or restriction. When I read the
Board of Ethics opinions they simply say look, if you have a, a, a, a, conflict of interest,
basically, what you should do, you should disclose it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MOTO: Right. And, and you should abstain from voting. But no opinion that I've read...I
don't, I don't think there's any opinion that says you have to shut up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes, yes.
MR. MOTO: So long as you disclose.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes.
MR. MOTO: Because once you disclose, everyone will know your position, your interest,
et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MOTO: Now this rule goes a little bit further than that.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MOTO: And it's because, and because this is a, a, a Rule of Council, it's entirely up to you
folks what it is you want to say.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, then I would beg to ask the question, to our draftee
of this, which is, see I forgot your name, see sometimes I go blank. Anyhow, I'm really
conflicted with this. And, Mr. Chair, I hope I not beating a dead horse but I am beating a
dead horse right now. I wanna know what participation, advocating, what the difference
mean because it's all in the same context'?
CHAIR MOLINA: If, if, I could just add in something before I recognize Ms. Hamman.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: The way I would interpret this -COLA( 1LMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Ms. Hamman, sorry, whew.
CHAIR MOLINA: --it's, it's for example if I'm a member of an organization -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: --who could potentially receive money, and I announce that I'm a member of
it, and that I will not be voting, I can still participate by being, giving you informational
items about the organization by saying that, oh, this is what this organization does, yadda,
yadda, yadda. But I cannot actively advocate and tell you, now you should go out and
support this, Members, even though I cannot vote, but please support it. That I would
interpret that as advocating for support. That is what is being prohibited.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's really grey, but go ahead, go ahead.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Hamman, anything else to add'?
MS. HAM MAN: I would agree with the Council, I mean, I'm sorry, with the Committee Chair's
interpretation. But I would also agree with Corporation Counsel that it's really up to this
body whether you wanna include that or keep that in the rule at this time that, that would
be your prerogative or if you wanted to delete it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
MS. HAMMAN: I think probably the basis for it --
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COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Sorry.
MS. HAMMAN: --has to do with avoiding the appearance of impropriety and that once you
start, you put on your hat as a member of that organization, and start advocating that there
may be an appearance of impropriety in your duties as a Council Member.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But see...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Before, before anybody else steps in, let me finish. And
then they can step in when they want to. But, 1, I really believe this is one of those
situations where almost a double standard. You can participate, but you cannot advocate.
And, and participating to me, and you can take it ...(inaudib/o... degree but if I'm
participating and saying that 1 think that this is a good idea and all this other stuff, to me I
think that, that's almost advocating in its own respect. But, you know, you can play on
semantics, you can play on the semantics of words. But I think if you're allowed to
participate, we gotta put something there that more than just advocating 'cause you can
cross that line very easily without attempting and we, maybe not even attempting to cross
it, you cross it. So I, I understand what you're saying, Mr. Chair, and I not disagreeing
with it, but I think that can be taken in, in, out of context by participating, could be
leading to other things right off the get go. And 1 may not, I may not, I may have a hard
time with that one. Maybe some, I don't know. But I'll leave it to you, Mr. Chair. And
hear what other Members have to say.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Medeiros, I know Member Baisa was
waiting in line to ask a question, if you don't mind yielding to her for the time being, then
I'll come back and recognize you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Medeiros. 1
share Mr. Victorino's concerns. We've heard earlier that it would be okay, once we
disclose our conflict, to participate in a discussion, and obviously, you know, as a board
member of that organization, you may have information that the rest of the Members,
who are not a member do not have. And if that's considered advocatinL to say, well, I
think this is really important because if you don't fund this, were gonna lose 300 people
having lunch, and so it's really important that we do it or whatever, I don't have any
problem with that. If it comes down to not having to vote, that's okay. But if we're
gonna go so far as to say you cannot participate in a discussion, which could be construed
as advocating, I'm sorry, but I cannot support this. And I have one more question but I
,
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will wait until after Member Medeiros has a turn 'cause he's been patiently waiting.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman, and mahalo to my colleague,
Ms. Baisa. First of all, you know, I, I agree with Mr. Moto. To serve two masters, both
with fiduciary responsibilities, is very difficult. How, how do you do that? I think
there's a decision to be made that you only can represent and, and he responsible to one,
you know, master. So it's a, it's a fine line to, you know, describe what is and what isn't.
But getting back to the point of discussion, and saying that is it discussion or is it
advocating? You know we were running into that problem when a Member disclosed
that they have some interest or part, a member of that organization, to allow the
Committee or the Council, they decide should they vote or not. The statement that brings
up, is it discussion or advocating? That puts a lot of challenges to the Member that's
chairmaning [sic] that meeting, to decide what is discussion and what is advocating.
So for me I think you should be clear, should be one way or the other and not leave a line
that's that fine to be determined by a Committee Chair or Council Chair because that's
difficult . .(Change Tape, Start 3,1). . . to do, and, and like we experienced when we're
saying, okay, you disclose that you're a board member, and then it was left to the
Members to decide if it was, they had any objections to that Member voting and stuff.
How can, you know, it, it's natural that most of us won't vote against that, that that
person should participate. So we need to have a finer and more definitive part of this
resolution and rules so that it doesn't leave it to the person that chairing the committee to
have to define and, and stop or not stop a Member from their discussions whether it's
informational or is it advocating. So that's a point I think we have to make; otherwise,
we end up in the same predicament -CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and challenges that who's gonna say, oh, you know, you
shouldn't be, you know, that's advocating. We, nobody will say that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So I think it should be left to the rules to definitely define
that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: And thank you, Mr. Medeiros. And you made some good points, but and,
and, you know, even no matter how tight we make the rules, everything is always subject
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to debate and interpretation, you know, so but, but I agree. We need to find ways to
tighten things and make things clearer, more, more definitive. And you know it's a nice
segue to get into -COUNCILMEMBER MEDE1ROS: Right.
CHAIR MOLINA: --discussions of the proposed resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I just wanted to follow up.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, with, with that being mentioned by myself, I was
wondering if Corp. Counsel would have any comments on that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, in light of the Council Member's observations, if, if one were to
adopt that position, then you could amend your, looking at Page 2 of the resolution that
Paragraph E, abstaining member's participation, bracket out. In other words, delete
...repeal, that part of the rule that says, provided that the Member shall reirain from
advocating the Member's interest on which the abstention is based during the discussion.
And leave the rest of it there. Just take that part of the sentence, the long sentence out.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, but, but then that would allow for
advocating.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, do, do we, do we want that?
MR. MOTO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No.
MR. MOTO: No. All I'm saying is that because, if, if if, because it is very difficult to
distinguish between -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's right.
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MR. MOTO: --advocacy and discussion -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MOTO: --and since I don't think the Board of Ethics in its opinions ever makes, has ever
made that distinction, it doesn't, you might consider repealing that part of this rule that,
that, that makes that distinction between discussion and advocacy because quite frankly,
it's almost impossible -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MOTO: --to draw a bright line between those two things.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. MOTO: And if you, if you repeal that proviso clause that I just read to you, I think then, all
you would have left is a rule that says an abstaining Member shall be permitted to
participate in the discussion of the matter.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. My perspective, it's a little bit different.
MR. MOTO: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: In that, I understand Mr. Moto's, you know, suggestion to
that. But, but for, for me is, if, if you're part of the discussion, you going be part of
advocating for it, you know, or, or opposing it. One way or the other. And if if you're a
member of a board, where the discussion has to do with matters concerning funding for
that organization, how do you separate discussion from advocating, is what I'm saying.
Even though if we remove the advocating part, who's to determine by the person chairing
that particular meeting, you know, if it's advocating. So, it's a difficult and I think, you
know, in, in bringing this forward, I think it was with the idea that somehow we could
find a way to make it clearer because I, I don't think it's right to leave it to the person that
is the chair of that particular meeting to have to decide that. That makes it very difficult.
So I understand Mr. Moto's suggestion, and but 1, I think on that matter, I'm, I'm gonna
wait to hear if any other Members have any ideas regarding that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. And, and to, if a Member or Committee Chair
runs into a problem, we can always rely on Legal Staff as well to give us further opinions
too, but anyway. Members, you know if if there are no objections, since we've been
basically talking about the resolution if, I'd like to ask for Mr. Mateo's guidance as we
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look at the attached resolution, to go over what's being considered for amendment to, to
the Council Rules, you can walk us through. And then Members will just discuss, you
know, go from there, -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: --and if you have questions along the way.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And apparently, you know, apparently, the
items that we have been discussing is, is primarily the focus of, of the, of the change
itself.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And I, I think some of the questions that, that was raised, you know,
are questions that we, we as a group need to come up with some kind of an understanding
that this is exactly what we want. For myself, obviously, I think this, I think this
resolution is terrific.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ...(Laughtc0...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: I don't have problems with the resolution. Obviously, it's just one
individual's opinion right. So -COUNCILM EMBER VICTORINO: ...(Chuckles)...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --so, you know, at this point, I, I think for all of us it gives us an
opportunity because we have in at least engaged in the dialogue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ...(Unrckles)...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And I'm hoping that we all can now, we understand what, what we're
saying. We understand what we need to do. We understand that we need to make things
a lot more clear. I'm hoping, Mr. Chairman, you know, that I'm not expecting us to pass
something out today. I'm hoping that we will have the opportunity for those Members
that do have specific issues, will help us in, in crafting areas of concern that, that they
want us to consider at the next opportunity we have with your Committee to discuss this.
And then pass something out of your Committee. It'll give us the opportunity to take the
time, hopefully, before Budget rolls around.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So that we can avoid any kind of I going use the word, perception, all
over again. And I'm, I'm sure Mr. Medeiros will help us in, in coming up with perhaps
clarifications or recommendations on what participation is, on what advocacy is. Staff
will be able to help us. I'm sure we're gonna be seeing Ms. Heely and Mr. Moto in, in
that assistance. Ms. Baisa, I'm sure, will be able to provide us additional areas that she
wants us to focus in with her recommendations on how we should acidness it. And I'm
sure Ms. Johnson will also do the same in helping us to focus in so we can be more
specific. So yes, in fact we can get rid of questions in our existing rules so we don't have
continued issues with it. But I would like to state that the discussion that has occurred at
this particular point in time has been based on a 1997 opinion from the Ethics, the Board
of Ethics. So it's not, it's not something that we did not know. It is something that we
have been trying to abide by. And now that we have clear directions, that is the
Ibundation. And for us now, the opportunity comes to continue to, to make the words
work for each one of us so there is no question down the road. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Member Johnson, followed by Member
Baisa.
COUNC1LMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I really appreciate, you know, I was watching on camera
too, a lot of the discussion, and I think that the question that Mr. Medeiros asked, the
difference between those two things, it's very subtle, the line is very fine.
Personally, if you disclose, in my view, and you say I am a member of this organization
whether we're putting in a proviso for something that's in our district, whether it's
advocating for a nonprofit that we have, either, even my, my participation on discussions
for Boys and Girls Club. Heck, I was Executive Director. Do you think I'm gonna lobby
against that? Do you think I'm going to advocate, you know, against funding? As long
as you disclose it, you can make your best pitch in the world. I really don't care because
it's up to the remaining Members whether we wanna buy your argument or not buy it.
I'm, you know, I can draw my own conclusions and opinion. If I think it's worthy, and if
you can make a point, that I'm unaware of, well, then you're just a darn good educator.
Because there's a lot of things that these nonprofits do that we have no knowledge of.
And if you don't say, from your personal perspective or your personal experience, what it
is that's really important, you are going to, 1 don't care whether you call it, and, and to
me it would be advocating. I don't, I don't mind that. As long as upfront, you say what
it is that you're disclosing. Then I'll draw my own conclusion about whether it has merit.
If it doesn't have merit, I may not support it. But truthfully, we're smart enough to figure
out when somebody is, you know, advocating for something that they really believe in or
don't believe in. To me, that's not the point. The point is disclose it. Let everybody
make their decisions based on just where the discussion goes. If you have something to
add, hey, I didn't give up my civil rights when 1 became a Council Member. If I have the
right to my opinion about something, you know what, I should be able to state it fully, as
long as I disclose where I'm coming from. So for me I don't care. The advocacy, you
know, don't even go there. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: ...(Chuck/es)...
CHAIR MOLINA: Freedom of speech, right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, very eloquent, Member Johnson. I'm not gonna take this
Committee's time to repeat what she said but, well said. And I certainly agree with you.
I have a question that's gonna muddy things. But I think we better ask it now before we
come back and have not looked at it. In the case of the Maui Economic Opportunity
Board, sometimes members do not serve personally but appoint representatives. And this
is the way the Board has been for quite a long time. And I assume we still have reps on
the ME0 Board. Director Sandy Baz is nodding yes, so we still do. And these reps are
appointed by the Council to serve in place of Council Members because of the Sunshine
Law limit of two. When there were five seats, there were three reps and two Members.
Now there will be two Council Members, I'm assuming, and two reps. Do these rules
that we are crafting, apply to those reps who represent Council Members?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I guess, anybody wanna take that question?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ...(Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think we better settle it because it's gonna be an issue if we
don't.
CHAIR MOLINA: I'm wondering if Corp. Counsel can answer that today.
MR. MOTO: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Moto or Ms. Heely.
MR. MOTO: Well, Mr. Chairman, for, on the superficial level, first of all the reps obviously
they don't have a vote. And they don't have seats so the, the, on, on the surface they
would never even be able. But if your question...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It looks easy, but it's not.
MR. MOTO: But i t' your question is, if, if there's someone representing you, -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. MOTO: --are you still treated as if you were still on the Board'?
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COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Correct.
MR. MOTO: If, if, if that's the issue -COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Correct.
MR. MOTO: --I personally, I don't think the Board of Ethics opinion say that, that's the case.
But this is where that particular issue, I would have to say, I would recommend that you,
that you, the Council, the Committee, whoever, seek advice fiont the Board of Ethics
because that particular narrow issue, I don't think has ever been specifically addressed by
the Board. They haven't had the reason or need to get into that level of detail. We can
guess or speculate what they might say or, or what, or what you might want them to say,
but right now I don't have a firm answer for you because the Board hasn't ruled on that
particular point.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I would request that we get some
kind of guidance because it's gonna become an issue if we don't deal with it now. And
while we're taking this apart and trying to make it clear and straighten it up, then let's
just do the whole thing.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Oh.
MS. HEELY: Sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Heely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Co ahead.
MS. HEELY: Yes. In, in the specific decision that's attached to Chair Matco's request, the last
page, the Board did briefly touch on that issue but not as specific as Member Baisa and
Mr. Moto just explained. But the Board, second to the last paragraph says, the Board
believes that the Code of Ethics does not prohibit a Council Member from designating a
representative to serve in his or her place on the board of a nonprofit agency so long as
the representative acts independently in that capacity, so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I remember that interpretation. And that was the reason why
they didn't see having three representatives as it was before, now two, serve, would be a
problem. Because they said they act independently. You know, if I was representing
Council Chair Mateo on the board, and I'm just average person, I'm not an elected
official but I'm his representative. If I'm going to the board meeting, and I'm gonna vote
yes on the minutes or no, or on the, on the grant request or whatever. I usually don't call
Mr. Mateo and say, how you want me to vote? You know, I usually just, you know,
make my own decision. And this is, was the understanding. But I think while we're
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taking this in-depth look and at ideas that people might have about possible conflicts of
interest, 1 think we should clear it up. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Baisa. Before recognizing other Members for
questions, the Chair would, since we have been talking about the resolution, I would like
to have read into the record, the proposed amendments to the resolution. We did discuss
E, under the Be It Resolved clause, but for the record. The Chair's intent, first of all,
we're not gonna act on the resolution today as suggested by the maker, Chairman Mateo.
But I would like to have the amendments read into the record. Staff, if you could assist
me. I guess we can start with letter C under the Be It Resolved clause, starting with
Disclosure of. If you could go ahead and read the, the rest of that proposed amendment
to the Rules of the Council for the viewing public and into public record.
MS. HAMMAN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. The first amendment would be to delete the
word "interest", and after that add, so it would read, Disclosure of service as board
member of corporation; abstention from voting. And then it would add, A voting
member who serves on the board of directors or executive committee of a for-profit or
nonprofit corporation shall take the following actions when the Council or a committee of
the Council is considering a matter that directly affects the corporation: (1) disclose the
service; and (2) abstain from voting on the matter. Examples of matters directly affecting
a corporation include an approval requested by the corporation and an individual
line-item appropriation to the corporation. General legislation, such as the overall
County budget or the General Plan, does not constitute a matter directly affecting a
corporation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, question on this, Subsection C of the Be It Resolved
clause? Any comments on the proposed amendment that's being made'? Mr. Victorino,
no? Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not on that section.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to ask Corp. Counsel
in using the word corporation. Is that the same word as when you incorporate an
organization?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, yes. I...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That, that's your understanding or that's -MR. MOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --what you would think that would mean'?
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MR. MOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the reason I ask that is, are all for-profit or nonprofits,
corporations? And, again -MR. MOTO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --I ask that because if some are not, then it doesn't cover
them. So I just wondering why, you know, organization or entity wasn't used instead of
corporation.
MR. MOTO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because corporations has specific business structure.
MR. MOTO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Moto.
MR. MOTO: I, well, 1, you know, I don't know if there are...I, I think all the nonprofits that
quite frankly, that the County deals with, especially since they have to jump through a lot
of hoops to get any kind of County assistance, are probably all in fact incorporated under
the laws of the State of Hawaii. So, but whether there are sonic unincorporated
nonprofits, that, that's possible. My understanding of the law for nonprofit organizations,
however, is that registration is required. This is something I would have to look into.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I, I think that would need to be
researched and definitely the answer needs to be found. Otherwise, you know, we're
limiting ourselves on this, if we, there are indeed nonprofits that are not incorporated.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions or comments related to Section C
under the Be It Resolved clause? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Just offering sonic information. You know, as part of obtaining
a grant from the County, one has to submit one's IRS letter of determination as a
nonprofit. Usually a 501(c)(3) is the, is the section that's used. So I don't know how
anybody gets around that. They also, we are often asked for our Form 990, which is
another document that nonprofits have to file. And it's part of grant requests and grant
monitoring, and contract execution. So it would be very, very rare to have somebody
who is not legal receiving a grant from the County. I mean, I can't think of any. But I
just wanted to offer that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Baisa. Any other questions related to the
amendment, Section C of the Be It Resolved clause before we move on to the other
subsections?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Moving on to letter D. Staff, if you could go ahead and read what's
beine, amended in Section D of the Be It Resolved clause.
MS. HAMMAN: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe Section D replaces the old, or, I'm sorry,
the proposed amendment would replace the current Section C of the Rule SC of the
Council. So it would add, Section D, Other disclosures of interest; abstention from
voting. Then it would add the word "voting" between, before the word "member".
CHAIR MOLINA: So it reads, A voting member shall disclose.
MS. HAMMAN: And I believe that's just a housekeeping matter.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. HAMMAN: It would then in Subsection 4, delete the word "shall", so, and add, believes
the member's voting would. So I'll just read that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
MS. HAMMAN: Subsection 4, any matter in which the member believes the member's voting
would be in violation of the Code of Ethics.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
NIS. HAMMAN: And then it goes on to, the current rule says prior to discussion on the matter, a
member makithz, such disclosure shall advise the Chair in an open meeting of the reason
for the request for abstention. But then, delete the word "A" and add, Except when
required to abstain pursuant to Rule 8(C), a member shall be permitted to abstain only
upon a vote of a majority of the Council members or voting members of a committee.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Staff. Chair has a quick question for Corp. Counsel regarding
the removal of the word "shall" and replacing it with "believes". Could you explain that
difference? Shall versus, you know, taking that out and putting believes. Sounds like it's
more, I guess, subjective.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Discretionary.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, discretionary. Whereas shall sounds more like a mandate, whereas
believes, is like, well, you and I can believe differently. Can I get a comment,
Corp. Counsel'?
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MS. HEELY: Sorry. Mahalo, Chair. My belief in the deletion of shall, but maybe Staff could
claHly since it was their suggestion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, okay.
MS. HEELY: But any, the body that is charged with determining violations of Code of Ethics is
the Board of Ethics so maybe it was a little bit confusion 'cause Council Member is not
charged with determining whether or not you have, you shall be in violation with the
Code of Ethics, so purely discretionary I think -CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Staff.
MS. HEELY: --in use of the word.
MS. HAMMAN: Yes, Mr. Chair, I believe that's exactly the reason why. So a Member may
feel that they have a conflict of interest, but they haven't had an opinion from the Board
of Ethics on that, so they don't know what the Board of Ethics would ultimately say but
they're concerned that they may have a conflict of interest. So that's the reason for
deleting the word "shall" and inserting the word "believes".
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Committee Members, questions on letter D, proposed
amendments on that? Okay, seeing none, and then, Members, we basically had a
discussion on letter E with regards to abstaining members participation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the one I...Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Any further discussion on that? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the one I've been waiting for.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. Mr. Victorino followed by Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the one I was waiting for. I didn't wanna discuss
the other one. 1 just wanna make that one perfectly clear. And I think, Ms. Johnson, and
she's gone but made it perfectly clear that once we or once a Member states that they are
a participant, or a board member, or something, and abstain from voting, then there
should be no restrictions on participation or advocating. 'Cause the two words, I, you
cannot, you cannot. I don't care how hard you try, to, to break it up and, and I agree with
her in this area. You then take away my right to free speech. I cannot vote, I'm
understanding on that, and I'm perfectly willing to accept that. However, my saying,
Members, I believe this to be a great organization and this is why, da, da, da, da, and I
also know Ms. Neely is a wonderful lady, and da, da, da, you know, that's advocating.
That's participation. That's everything all in one sentence. Thank you, Ms. Hedy.
Don't, don't get modest now. But, I, I use that as an example because then you say I,
then I'm not, then I cannot participate.
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The only way we can do this either nonparticipation or participation. The advocating
part, we gotta leave that out 'cause it's just not gonna work. And I don't wanna put any
chair, or any, any one individual to make that decision. I think participation either is
allowed or is not allowed, and my feeling is I believe participation, by you telling what
you know about the organization, the qualities of the organizations, the inner workings of
the organization which some Members may not know at that point, may help them make
a decision, one way or the other. Whether you agree or disagree, at least you've got your
story out there and you've made it known. And so once you abstain, there's nothing else
except selling that point, making sure that point of view is known to you, your Members,
and, I mean, from you to your Members and as well as the public at large. So, that's
where I'd like to see that one fixed. You know, either, either or, and I would be strongly
against the "or" part, not participating, because that way I would save, my, my right to
be, my right of freedom of speech, and, and my, my ability to express my belief on
something would be then taken away. That's all 1 have to say, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILM EMBER NISHIKI: A little different take on it. And, and, and it has to do with
wearing two hats. Anytime you, you sit here, you don't wanna wear two hats. And if
anytime you know you're wearing two hats, then I think that you know in your heart
what you're trying to do, to either get somebody to vote the same way that you vote.
And, and, and, and, I don't know if this is what Mr. Medeiros, or why it is in here,
Mr. Chairman. But it, it's not having to do with a freedom of speech issue. I think it has
to do with an ethical issue of what was brought up about wearing two hats. And that is
this. You know exactly why you're speaking on behalf or whatever. You, you're trying
to get the funding. That's why. Somebody should know, you're right. Somebody should
know more, you're right. That's why you're speaking on behalf of that funding. And if,
you know, and, and that's something for us to sit and, and think about at the next
meeting. But if you're doing that, then the easiest way that we have an opportunity to do
is, fine, do it. But then, if you're sitting on that nonprofit that you're speaking on behalf,
then your choice is to remove yourself from sitting on it. 1 mean, that's the choice you
have because think about it. If you're speaking on behalf, and, and, and you're sitting on
it, then you really wearing two hats. I think it's real simple to me and, and probably the,
most people that think about it. It's not the freedom of speech. 1, I, I believe that. So if
you wanna speak on behalf of it, go for it man. 1, I, I, I, 1, support you. Talk ten minutes,
you know. But then remove yourself from that organization and, and don't sit on it.
However, if you still wanna do it, for whatever reason, volunteerism or whatever, wanna
help the seniors, wanna help those that need, hey, I can respect that. But when it comes
to discussion, Mr. Chairman, I think one should not be wearing that other hat, trying to
push for that person. Because again, there you go. You're wearing two hats. You are
wearing two hats. But anyway, that's, that's just my take and I don't know if that was the
reason why E was put in. We never found out because everybody was maybe afraid to
talk about it. But I, I, I had to listen to people's opinion and, and, and, and the only thing
that got me was, wearing two hats. And I think it's a, it's one that we need to think
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about. And if you wanna eliminate that perception, to me, that's the clean way to do it.
You know, you wanna go talk for it, for it, then don't sit on the board. But if you wanna
sit on the board, then don't wear that other hat and go talk about it 'cause that's what
you're doing. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Well, Members, it's getting close to that
hour. We do have another Committee meeting coming up at 1:30, under Member
Johnson's leadership. But before we end today, you know, I guess the seed has been
planted as it relates to our future decision-making relating to the budget, and ultimately,
you know, we're all judged in the court of public opinion whether we wear one hat or two
hats. So before closing, I'd like to ask Member Kaho`ohalahala if there's anything, he
would like to add. I know you've heard a lot of discussion, and Q&A. I'd like to give
you that opportunity.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Well, thank you, Chair. I thought about
whether or not I should add to the discussion but it's, it's real clear to me in, in all that's
been presented and by the opinions that we've been reviewing by the Board of Ethics and
from our Corporation Counsel. But real simply, I think disclosure is one part of this
issue. And the fact that one would disclose would, would be specifically to allow the
general public to understand their participation in any one entity that, that we might be
involved with funding. The second part of disclosure is participation. And I think if the
Member is willing to disclose their, their position within an organization, then it is really
up to the Member to determine whether or not they Nv an n a carry on a discussion as in
advocacy of a, of a situation or not, having already made a disclosure. Then all of this is
really perception. We got the law that's been presented to us, in some cases, not real
precise. But the rest of it is the general perception of the community that you disclose
one, is good. But if you wanna continue participating, and advocating for that, then it is
that perception that I think the general public will make their own conclusions based on
who you are as a sitting Council Member in the, the issue or the item before the Council
or the body. So, you know, I think it's . . Aliange Tape, Side 3B). . . going to end up
being the own responsibility. And like Member Johnson said, you know, don't take away
my rights. At the same time, Member Johnson should know what the consequences
would be. So as long you are clear about what the consequences are of that action in
which you want to exercise in your own personal capacity, then, then that should be also
made very clear. So it's just not a one-sided thing. It's that exercise what you believe is
your right to do, so. But having taken that step, you must also be aware that there are
consequences, perhaps, in making that decision. But it's your individual choice to do so.
So for me it's kind of real clear, you know so, so that's why I, I think I was willing to
listen to the, to the discussions. But that's in my own mind, it's, it's clear.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much for your comments, Member Kahocohalahala.
Alright, Members, Chair's going to adjourn. And I wanna thank you for a very, very
productive discussion on, on this matter. I gotta admit this was one of the more
interesting discussions I've, I've experienced being a Member of this County Council for
nearly ten years. I'd like to thank all of you for your hard work. To the Administration,
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Corporation Counsel, mahalo for responding to all of the questions and very difficult
issues that we've had to deal with. And of course, to our hard-working Staff, thank you
very much. Members, it is seven minutes to the hour of 12 o'clock, this December 3 rd ,
2009...oh, excuse me. Oh yes, officially we are going to defer Committee of the Whole,
Item 30.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

(excused: JJ and JP)

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR MOLINA: No objections. Alright, thank you. And thank you very much, Staff, for
pointing that out. Seven minutes to the hour of noon, this December 3 rd , 2009 Committee
of the Whole Meeting is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .

ADJOURN: 1 1 :54 a.m.
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